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          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: For the record,

          3  this is the meeting of the entire Land Use

          4  Committee.  Just to introduce the members that are

          5  here on the Committee:  Vinnie Gentile, Al Vann, and

          6  Councilman Leroy Comrie, Councilman Peter Vallone

          7  has joined us.  We are doing a hearing on a cell

          8  phone tower bill.  In is walking Michael McMahon,

          9  Councilman from Staten Island.

         10                 We are, for the record, going to

         11  start the hearing on the cell phone tower.  The

         12  Administration is here, three agencies, to testify.

         13                 Then we are going to go forward and

         14  have a panel for, and a panel against the cell phone

         15  tower bill.

         16                 The cell phone tower bill is the only

         17  legislation that is going to be heard today.  If you

         18  are here to testify on anything else, except the

         19  cell phone tower bill, you will not be a able to

         20  testify.  What we will do, is vote on the entire

         21  agenda of the Land Use Committee recommendations

         22  that have been sent up by the three subcommittees.

         23  We will vote on those today.

         24                 The hearing is going to be about

         25  Councilman Vallone's cell phone tower bill,
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          2  basically, it requires a ULURP

          3  process to place cell phone facilities or towers all

          4  around the City of New York.  Right now, there are

          5  certain rules, but basically, cell phone towers can

          6  go up on buildings and around the City, and the

          7  process by which they go up is not that followed by

          8  the City of New York.

          9                 I think Councilman Vallone wants to

         10  say a few words on it.  I will say, though, that

         11  this has been an issue on so many different levels

         12  throughout the City ever since cell phones became a

         13  big deal.  Everyone here remembers before the time

         14  of cell phones, right?  Everybody remembers those

         15  times?  Quiet times. Peaceful times.  Restful times.

         16    Before cell phones came out.  And now, clearly, we

         17  rely on them so heavily in our everyday work and

         18  life.  But there is a balancing between being able

         19  to catch everyone at every moment of the day that

         20  they want to be caught on the cell phone.  And also,

         21  the idea of where and when the towers and the

         22  facilities should be placed throughout the City of

         23  New York.

         24                 I am hoping, as the Chair of this

         25  Committee, that we reach a happy medium at some
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          2  point in the next few months.  But today is the

          3  first hearing.  It will start the discussion, and I

          4  look forward to actually hearing both sides of this

          5  issue.

          6                 Right now, I'd like to call on

          7  Councilman Vallone to say a few words about his

          8  legislation.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you

         10  Councilwoman Katz. First, let me thank you for

         11  holding this hearing.  As you mentioned, this is not

         12  an issue which is taken lightly by either side.

         13  This is not something you had to weigh in on, and I

         14  very much appreciate the fact that you decided to

         15  hold this hearing, despite the pressure put on you

         16  from all sides.  And want to look into this very,

         17  very important issue, this worldwide issue.

         18                 Let me first speak to my fellow

         19  Council Members, who have been speaking to lobbyist.

         20    I know right up to before this meeting happened.

         21  Despite what is being said to you, I am not trying

         22  to shut down the wireless industry.  What most

         23  lobbyist won't tell you is that New York City is

         24  perhaps the most lax big city in the entire nation

         25  when it comes to installing cell phone towers.  All
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          2  we're looking to do here is what already exists in

          3  cities like LA and Chicago.  So don't listen to any

          4  of this "sky is falling" talk, we're just trying to

          5  be responsible here.

          6                 People in this City, and throughout

          7  the world want some say in where cell towers are

          8  placed.  But because of a 1998 memo by -- it's

          9  called the Visconti Memo, a TPPN which was issued in

         10  1998 -- the City abdicated all of its responsibility

         11  when it comes to the placement of these towers.

         12  This memo said, basically, that cell towers will not

         13  be included in the definition of communications

         14  equipment.  Which is wrong on every level.  But on

         15  two main levels.

         16                 Number one, it's like saying an apple

         17  is not a fruit.  And number two, if you want to

         18  change the law, you come to this body.  You can't do

         19  it on your own.  A cell tower is clearly a piece of

         20  communications equipment.  And should receive

         21  governmental review.  But because of that memo, it

         22  does not.

         23                 Now, the zoning text -- because of

         24  that memo, because of what happened with that memo,

         25  I'd like to show you some of the pictures here.
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          2  This is what goes on every location where there's a

          3  cell tower.  And it says on here,  Emissions may

          4  exceed FCC standard, obey all posted signs, maintain

          5  a minimum distance of seven feet from all antennas.

          6  And this is now what exists in all of our

          7  neighborhoods.

          8                 These antennas are seven feet from

          9  that next building.  Which is a bedroom one block

         10  from my home.  On this side, these are the famous

         11  antennas which we have removed, which were facing PS

         12  122, a school, which had a disabled class right

         13  across the street from these antennas.  And they

         14  took those down only because of public pressure, not

         15  because we had any say in the matter.  Not because

         16  there was anything the people could do about it.  It

         17  was just because of public pressure.  And this is

         18  happening throughout the City right now.  There's no

         19  say that the people have.

         20                 This is a worldwide phenomenon.  I

         21  have spoken on the BBC many times.  I met recently

         22  with the Israeli Minister of the Environment.  It's

         23  a big issue in Israel.  And in fact, yesterday, this

         24  morning, this magazine was handed to me.  It's a

         25  large Greek magazine.  And it says right here, I
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          2  just underlined it ten minutes ago, "In 2003, the

          3  Greek Ombudsman's Office issued a report revealing

          4  that antennas were being installed without correct

          5  procedures, and necessary permits."  And these

          6  procedures were demanded because of the long- term

          7  health impact of this new technology won't be known

          8  for decades.  The reporter recommended establishing

          9  safe distances from schools and hospitals, and it

         10  goes on and on.

         11                 So this is a worldwide phenomenon.

         12  People throughout the world are waking up and having

         13  these cell phone towers across the street from their

         14  bedroom windows.

         15                 Maybe they're safe.  I hope they're

         16  safe.  But they said asbestos and lead paint were

         17  safe.  They turned out that they were not.

         18                 I am the Public Safety Chair.  I

         19  understand that we need cell phone service.  We need

         20  reliable cell phone service, especially when it

         21  comes to 9- 11 calls.  So I do not intend to shut

         22  down this industry.  What I do believe we should do

         23  though, is allow it to grow responsibly.  With the

         24  say of the people involved. And I think that the

         25  goal of reliable cell phone service and safe
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          2  neighborhoods can be accomplished.  And that's what

          3  we're beginning the process of doing here today.

          4                 So thank you again, Chairwoman Katz

          5  for allowing me this to happen.  I look forward to

          6  hearing from all sides.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: First, we're going

          8  to have the Administration testify.  DoITT,

          9  Agostino.

         10                 And we'll also do, while we're here,

         11  the New York City Department of Buildings, Felicia

         12  Miller.  Please.  And David Karnovsky from City

         13  Planning.  I don't care who goes first.  My

         14  suggestion, there might be that City Planning goes

         15  first, considering it's a ULURP issue.  Are you

         16  testifying for everybody? I'm sorry.  So many

         17  levels.  Hold on one second.  Please start.

         18                 MR. CANGEMI: Good morning Chairperson

         19  Katz and members of the New York City Committee on

         20  Land Use.  My  name is Agostino Cangemi.  I'm the

         21  Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel at the

         22  Department of Information Technology and

         23  Telecommunications. Joining me today are my

         24  colleagues Felicia Miller, from the Department of

         25  Buildings; and David Karnovsky, from the Department
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          2  of City Planning.

          3                 We appreciate the opportunity to

          4  appear before you today to provide testimony on

          5  Resolution 1035, which would create additional

          6  procedures for the issuance of special permits in

          7  residential districts of facilities defined as

          8   "telephone exchange or communications equipment."

          9                 In an era when New York City's role

         10  in the nation's and the world's economy is more than

         11  ever defined in terms of its role in the creation,

         12  dissemination, and application of ideas and

         13  information, the City's telecommunications networks

         14  are vitally important parts of its basic

         15  infrastructure.  New York City's status as a global

         16  financial center is heavily dependent on the

         17  capacity and reliability of its telecom networks.

         18  Cellular service remains an integral part of this

         19  network, and as a result, the Bloomberg

         20  Administration has made it a priority to support the

         21  enhancement of cellular service throughout the City

         22  of New York.

         23                 In the Midtown and Lower Manhattan

         24  central business districts, businesses have access

         25  to telecommunication networks and services that are
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          2  among the most sophisticated and reliable in the

          3  world.  Nevertheless, in some parts of the City,

          4  including many residential districts, local

          5  telecommunications infrastructure is still

          6  characterized by gaps in service quality.  In order

          7  to effectively improve telecom services in those

          8  areas that most need enhancements, we need to

          9  encourage, rather than discourage the build out of

         10  much needed infrastructure.

         11                 The Administration believes that the

         12  zoning text amendment proposed under Resolution 1035

         13  would present an undue burden on telecommunications

         14  companies.  The ramification of which could include

         15  a potential slow down in cellular, broadband, and

         16  other telecom infrastructure enhancements, mostly

         17  especially in underserved areas of the City.

         18                 It would also serve as a deterrent to

         19  the continued growth of competition in the telecom

         20  market place.  And furthermore, could be responsible

         21  for delaying the rollout of future technological

         22  enhancements, leaving New York City to lag behind

         23  other cities across the country.

         24                 As such, the Administration opposes

         25  this resolution as written, and would oppose any
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          2  zoning or other regulations which places similar

          3  burdens upon the installation of cellular antennas.However

          4  , the Administration approaches this issue with an

          5  open mind, and we would be happy to explore with the

          6  Council less burdensome methods which balance the

          7  need to enhance cellular service with community

          8  concerns..

          9                 Currently, there are more appropriate

         10  policies and laws in place that measure and

         11  regulate, from a land use point of view, build out

         12  of cellular antennas.  According to Technical Policy

         13  and Procedural Notice issued by DOB, installations

         14  of cell antennas that meet certain criteria require

         15  only the filing of an alteration application, and

         16  the issuance of a DOB permit.

         17                 I actually want to clarify, because

         18  it may be a question of semantics, but we've been

         19  referring to this resolution as the cell phone

         20   "tower" bill.  The DOB TPN does not address towers.

         21    Towers across the country -- you have a vision of

         22  something that looks like the Eiffel Tower.  You see

         23  them along the New York State Thruway.  They are

         24  quite large, go into the air dozens of feet.  Those

         25  are the kinds of installations that exist mostly in
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          2  rural areas and outside of areas with New York

          3  City's type of buildings.  So I just want to point

          4  that out.

          5                 The criteria in TPN includes the

          6  following:

          7                 The antenna must be attached to a

          8  building or other structure that has a use

          9  independent of supporting the antennas.

         10                 The antenna may not extend higher

         11  than six feet above the height of the roof.

         12                 The antennal shall each have an area

         13  of no more than 8.45 square feet, or one meter in

         14  diameter.

         15                 And the related cellular equipment

         16  must not occupy more than five percent of the floor

         17  area on a zoning lot or 400 square feet.  Because

         18  cellular towers and other large cellular

         19  installations do not meet these criteria, such

         20  installations are subject to a special permit

         21  process conducted by the Board of Standards and

         22  Appeals.

         23                 So if someone wants to install a

         24  tower, you have to go through DSA, and the process

         25  is not subject to TPN.  There is already a DSA
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          2  process for that.

          3                 In addition, Local Law 28, passed

          4  this year, requires DOB to maintain a separate list

          5  of alteration permits issued for the installation or

          6  placement of all antennas used to provide cellular

          7  service.  This list is available to the public

          8  electronically on a 24- hour basis.

          9                 The Administration strongly believes

         10  the existing requirements outlined above provide

         11  sufficient means for land use review of the build

         12  out of cellular, broadband, and other telecom

         13  infrastructure.  Furthermore, these exiting

         14  requirements provide a simple mechanism for

         15  providing information regarding cellular build outs

         16  to the public.  Subjecting cellular antennas,

         17  regardless of the size or scope, to a lengthy and

         18  case- by- case review under a special permit process

         19  would impose an unnecessary burden on

         20  telecommunications technology improvement, which

         21  would in turn, create undesirable delays in the

         22  provision of service enhancement to the public.

         23                 Once again,  I would like to thank

         24  you for providing me with the opportunity to testify

         25  before you.  And my colleagues and I are ready to
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          2  answer any question you may have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can you just go

          4  over briefly, for the record, how cell phone towers,

          5  which I understand are placed? And also how the

          6  facilities on top of the buildings are placed now?

          7                 MR. CANGEMI: Okay.  Cell phone towers

          8  are larger structures.  They're not the kinds of

          9  things you saw in the picture that Council Member

         10  Vallone showed us.  Those look kind of like an iron

         11  mini Eiffel Tower.  And those exist mostly in areas

         12  outside of the City.  There are very few in New York

         13  City.  And those require a DSA review.

         14                 The cell phone antennas that are on

         15  rooftops, are much smaller antennas, and those do

         16  not require a DSA review.  As long as you fit within

         17  the TPN requirements, simply filing an alteration

         18  permit, which is then maintained on the web site.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And since it's on

         20  buildings, it has to be, obviously -- what do you

         21  do?  You make an agreement with the landlord?  Is

         22  that how you do it?

         23                 MR. CANGEMI: The cell phone

         24  companies?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.
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          2                 MR. CANGEMI: Yes.  They will lease

          3  rooftop space.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Not only, but I'm

          5  assuming it's the landlord that makes the

          6  application and has to sort of testify, or however

          7  you want to say it that they fit all the rules that

          8  the City requires.

          9                 Does the landlord have to go to the

         10  City at all?

         11                 MR. CANGEMI: It's the owner that

         12  signs the application permit.  The owner signs the

         13  permit for application.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So there's an

         15  application made to the City.  The owner of the

         16  building, the landlord I guess in most cases, makes

         17  that application.  And then they make the agreement

         18  for whatever funding goes with it to the company.

         19                 MR. CANGEMI: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think I'm going

         21  to turn this over for the moment, to Councilman

         22  Vallone.  I think he has some questions.  Right?

         23  And for the record -- oh, let me just say, just a

         24  little housekeeping -- General Welfare is in the

         25  adjoining room, in the City Council chambers.  If
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          2  you're here for that, your going to hear testimony

          3  you're probably not interested in.  If you want to

          4  be in Housing and Buildings, that is in 250

          5  Broadway, on the 14th floor.  Today, we are finally

          6  doing the International Building Code.  I know

          7  nobody believes it, but we are.  And that is over on

          8  14th.

          9                 The other issue was for my Committee

         10  members here, we are waiting for a quorum.  As soon

         11  as we have a quorum, we will take care of the

         12  voting.  And then we will continue the cell phone

         13  tower hearing.

         14                 We've been joined by Councilman Eric

         15  Gioia, Councilman Nelson, and Councilman Koppell,

         16  from the Bronx.

         17                 Thank you.  Councilman Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you

         19  Madam Chair.  And thank you for testifying everyone

         20  who is here from the City.  I appreciate your coming

         21  down.  And I also would like to make clear the fact

         22  that we've met many times before today, and many of

         23  my questions have been answered.  We have been

         24  working together on this.

         25                 I know that you said that the
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          2  ramifications of this bill could include a potential

          3  slow down in cellular infrastructure enhancements.

          4  And that's exactly the point.  We're looking for a

          5  potential slow down.

          6                 And I know that you said also, that

          7  you are opposed to this right now, but you approach

          8  it with an open mind.  And the members of this

          9  Committee should realize that we're working together

         10  to come up with a solution which you do support,

         11  which would require some sort of review by the

         12  government.  You just believe that this one is too

         13  strict.  And we appreciate that.  We look forward to

         14  working with you.

         15                 You mentioned a few things in your

         16  testimony.  You mentioned about the criteria that

         17  needs to be met, such as no higher than six feet

         18  above the height of the roof.  And the dimensions.

         19  And five percent of the floor area.  Things like

         20  that. To be clear, once those requirements are met,

         21  New York City has no say whether to approve or

         22  disapprove these permit applications. Correct?

         23                 MR. CANGEMI: I believe that's

         24  correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I think the
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          2  answer was "I believe that's correct."  So all the

          3  cell phone company has to do is meet this minimum

          4  criteria and no one has a say about where these

          5  things are placed.

          6                 MR. CANGEMI: I would say that I think

          7  what we've done is evaluate this certain segment of

          8  cell phone installations, and put them within the

          9  TPN, so that I think the process is one where we've

         10  taken a limited approach, but I think it's one that

         11  is limited to these smaller antennas.

         12                 When you say -- there has been public

         13  review by the City Administration on what should

         14  have been the policy so to speak.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: When you say

         16  there has been public review, you're talking about

         17  the cell phone tower as opposed to the antennas.  A

         18  tower cannot be build without going before the Board

         19  of Standards and Appeals.  You probably realize that

         20  since this 1998 memo, there's been one tower in the

         21  entire City of New York that's been subject to Board

         22  of Standards and Appeals review, and that is in

         23  Staten Island.  Am I correct about that?

         24                 MR. CANGEMI: I don't know the numbers

         25  on which have gone through --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: See, the

          3  point is, they've stopped building antennas.  I'm

          4  not going to argue which one is better, the larger

          5  antenna or the smaller ones that are across the

          6  street from people's windows.  But they've stopped

          7  building those because they have to go through the

          8  Board of Standards and Appeals process.  And they've

          9  built these other ones without any review at all.

         10                 You mentioned Local Law 28, passes

         11  this year, requires the Department of Buildings to

         12  maintain a separate list. And that was my bill, and

         13  probably all the Council Members here, I believe,

         14  voted for it.  And as you probably know, that took a

         15  year of fighting against the lobbyist, and working

         16  with the Administration, which didn't originally

         17  support it, to get that done.  All that bill did, is

         18  what you say here.  It kept a list of where these

         19  cell phone towers exist.

         20                 And again, I need to alert the

         21  Council Members of some of the rhetoric you'll be

         22  hearing coming up, when other people testify.  But

         23  the lobbyists sat there, in that chair in the other

         24  room, and said that we can't maintain a list because

         25  that would allow terrorists to know where these
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          2  antennas are.  And place us in some sort of risk.

          3  As if terrorists would be running around blowing up

          4  every two and three family building in Queens and

          5  Staten Island and everywhere else, because they know

          6  where T- Mobile's antennas are.

          7                 Subsequent to that testimony, I met

          8  with the Israeli Minister of the Environment.  And

          9  learned that in Israel -- this is interesting

         10  information -- not only is there a list, it's on the

         11  Internet.  Everyone could go on the Internet and

         12  find every cell phone tower in the entire country of

         13  Israel.  So I think if Israel doesn't have any

         14  terrorist concerns about cell phone towers, I don't

         15  have them here in New York City.

         16                 But that's just what the kind of

         17  stuff you've heard under oath in the other hearing,

         18  and you will hear today.  Just ridicules "sky is

         19  falling" stuff like terrorists somehow involved with

         20  cell phone towers here in New York City.

         21                 But we did pass that law with a bare

         22  minimum.  We had to fight hard against the lobbyists

         23  to get that done, but we did.  And I'm proud of the

         24  people here in this room.

         25                 Now, you mentioned the memo.  The
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          2  1998 memo.  And it might be DOB that might have to

          3  answer this, but what was the legal reasoning

          4  involved in exempting cell phone antennas from the

          5  definition of communications equipment?

          6                 MS. MILLER: The Department was

          7  acknowledging the case load that had already found

          8  that cellular telephone companies are properly

          9  classified as public utilities, and as such, were to

         10  be afforded deference.  And given in that context,

         11  the Department interpreted the zoning resolution to

         12  treat them differently.

         13                 But as you are aware, you have filed

         14  a case at the Board of Standards and Appeals, which

         15  has been calendared, and will be heard in when in

         16  which this Policy and Procedure Notice is the

         17  subject of that case.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes, I have

         19  looked forward to going to court on that one

         20  actually.  And being before  a judge to determine

         21  why that happened.  I know that we're working

         22  together on this, to come to a solution.  Some of

         23  the people in the audience might be upset that I'm

         24  not yelling a screaming at you guys, but they don't

         25  realize that we're all working together.  And I've
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          2  had personal conversations with the Mayor on this.

          3  And you are aware of the issue.  And I don't yell

          4  and scream just to get on camera. Only if there's a

          5  purpose involved.

          6                 I don't have any more questions at

          7  the moment, Madam Chair.  I may have some more down

          8  the road.  Thank you again.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Comrie.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you

         11  Madam Chair.

         12                 A question.  Has the City assessed

         13  what the necessary build out would be in order to

         14  ensure that there would be cell phone coverage?  And

         15  has DoITT, or any other City planning or whatever

         16  the combination is, done a real field assessment on

         17  what needs to be installed between now and then?

         18                 MR. CANGEMI: Thank you.  Excellent

         19  question.

         20                 There are a lot of factors that play

         21  into the build out that would be necessary.  First

         22  of all, on a macro level, in the cellular industry,

         23  there's some consolidation happening.  You have

         24  Nextel, which has merged with Sprint; and you have

         25  Cingular merged with ATT.  So that will lead in many
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          2  respects, to less of a need for multiple independent

          3  cellular networks to be build out. So rather than

          4  having six major networks that have to be built out

          5  using different technology, we'll be left with four.

          6    So just because of those macro economic kind of

          7  mergers that are happening in the industry, there's

          8  less of a need.

          9                 They do operate on different

         10  spectrums.  Therefore, they can't all use the same

         11  equipment, or choose definitely not to use that same

         12  equipment.  What is happening globally, is that

         13  rather than just using your phone for voice

         14  communications, you've already seen this.  More and

         15  more text messaging, more and more video clips.

         16  It's called broadband video streaming.  In order to

         17  provide that kind of broadband video streaming,

         18  companies are going to need more and more locations.

         19    I couldn't tell you, because it's a complicated

         20  engineering question.  But I do know that globally,

         21  depending on each of the different types of

         22  technology that's used, each company is going to

         23  need more and more locations.  And often, those

         24  locations have to get closer to the ground.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Closer to the

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  ground?

          3                 MR. CANGEMI: Lower.  Just in terms of

          4  anecdotally, a few years ago, DoITT, through the 311

          5  hotline, solicited from constituents, information

          6  regarding where they thought cell phone coverage was

          7  spotty.  Or where there are areas where improvement

          8  was needed.  And we did get thousands of responses

          9  from New Yorkers, all over the City, that thought

         10  that the cell phone coverage needed improvements.

         11  So we know that there's a road to go to get it to a

         12  level of reliability that we'd like it to be.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you have

         14  the results from that study, from the 311 study?

         15                 MR. CANGEMI: Yes.  It was posted on

         16  the web.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         18                 MR. CANGEMI: It is -- I wouldn't call

         19  it a study. It was a self- recorded kind of

         20  complaint.  So whenever you experienced a dropped

         21  call, or inability to make a call, you were able to

         22  call 311, and we took all of those complaints, and

         23  mapped it on a map of New York City so you can see

         24  that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Also, just in
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          2  terms of build out.  Aren't we trying to go to one

          3  standard for -- and international standard?  What's

          4  the status of that?

          5                 MR. CANGEMI: I don't think that

          6  that's likely to happen very soon.  There's a

          7  standard that's used in Europe and in Africa that

          8  has not been adopted universally by the providers in

          9  North America.  And I don't think that there is any

         10  immediate plans to adopt that standard, universal

         11  standard.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  A

         13  question on the emissions.  Since it seems to be a

         14  key issue --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Excuse me

         16  Councilman.  There is a lot of moving around in

         17  here.  If everybody could either come, or go.  One

         18  or the other, that would be very helpful.  And if

         19  there's conversation, take it outside.  Alright?

         20  Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: With the

         22  increase and the need of the increase to do

         23  broadband for video, has there been newer

         24  technologies or lower emissions on band width?  And

         25  just on a follow up, I had read an article saying

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  that in order to ensure lower band width, you had to

          3  have better coverage, so that -- and according to

          4  the article, when you're down at like one bar, or

          5  half a bar, your phone has to work harder to pick it

          6  up.  And therefore, it's emitting more cellular

          7  emissions.  Have you seen anything to address that?

          8  And do you have any answer for the first part?  The

          9  newer technology to lower emission on band width.

         10                 MR. CANGEMI: I don't have an answer

         11  for you.  I'm sorry.  I'm not aware of a difference

         12  in terms of the use as affecting emissions.  I think

         13  there's equipment, depending on the equipment that's

         14  used, there are different emission levels.  All the

         15  equipment that's used is FCC compliant by a factor

         16  of -- they don't even come close to the FCC emission

         17  requirements.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  But has

         19  the City looked at, or analyzed any of the towers

         20  for emission band width? Or actually for reliability

         21  in case there's another major incident? Because at

         22  9- 11, cell phones went down also.  So what are we

         23  doing about ensuring we have a more rigid structure

         24  from a City's perspective, so that we can keep cell

         25  phones up during 9- 11 or do you have another --
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          2  even an electrical power outage, the cell phones

          3  went down again.  What are we doing about that?

          4                 MR. CANGEMI: I just had a meeting

          5  with the OEF Commissioner last week, just talking to

          6  him about each of the various cell phone companies.

          7  We've had discussions with them about the backup

          8  power at each of the facilities.  There are a number

          9  of issues.  You can make each location extremely

         10  resilient, that would be very expensive.  Nor would

         11  you necessarily want to do that from a community

         12  perspective, because while I believe almost all of

         13  the cell phone tenants have backup battery power,

         14  that gives you approximately four hours of power in

         15  the even of an outage, if you want to exceed four

         16  hours, you need to start providing generators as

         17  well as diesel fuel.  And that's a concern for the

         18  private landlords as well as the residents in terms

         19  of storage of the fuel and the generators.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  Madam

         21  Chair, I see you have a quorum, and I know Housing

         22  and Buildings needs a quorum, so I'd like to let you

         23  do the vote so I can run over and come back.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can I just remind

         25  my colleagues that there is a lot of witnesses
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          2  today.  If I can have some order, that would be

          3  great.  There is a lot of witnesses today.  A lot of

          4  you all have questions.  I so far, have six people

          5  who want to ask questions of the Administration.  So

          6  if we can keep our questions short, that would be

          7  great.

          8                 Housing and Buildings has a quorum,

          9  they are voting. I would like to now call the vote,

         10  if I can interrupt this for one minute, on items

         11  given to us by the subcommittees.

         12                 We have been joined by Councilman

         13  Monserrate, Councilman Perkins, Councilman Lanza,

         14  Councilman Felder, Councilman Martinez, Councilman

         15  Gioia, I'm not sure I had him yet, and Councilwoman

         16  Quinn.

         17                 On the agenda today for a vote, LU

         18  number 529 is a UDAAP, in Councilman Perkins

         19  district for 37 residential units. 531 is a UDAAP

         20  for Councilman Vann's district for 33 residential

         21  units for low- income persons.  LU number 547 is

         22  Staten Island.  It is Councilman Oddo and Councilman

         23  Lanza.  CO50180ZMR.  I know Councilman Lanza is

         24  here, Jimmy.  And Councilman Oddo is for the

         25  project, he is not here today, but he is for it.  LU
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          2  number 611 is a rezoning in Staten Island as well.

          3  CO50145ZMR.  LU number 617 is Councilman Fidler.  It

          4  is a zoning map change in Brooklyn.  A modification

          5  of a previously approved restrictive declaration.

          6  LU number 618 and 619 are related.  It is the famous

          7  South Slope rezoning.  Councilwoman Gonzalez and

          8  Councilman de Blasio's district.  NO60053ZRK.  LU

          9  number 621 is Councilman Reed's district.  It is a

         10  UDAAP for 110 residential units.  Resolution number

         11  1035, which is the Vallone resolution that we are

         12  doing the hearing, will be laid over.  LU number

         13  559, 595, 597, 598, 612, and 613.  Any discussion by

         14  the Council Members?

         15                 Call the role.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Did you say that the

         17  Vallone resolution is being laid over?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Thank you.

         20                 Council Member Katz.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Aye on all

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Madam Chair,

          9  I want to vote aye on all, and continue to encourage

         10  my colleagues to please try to make note on their

         11  agenda for the subcommittee meeting.  Because there

         12  are a lot of items coming up as we close the year.

         13  And very important items that need to be voted on at

         14  the subcommittee to be brought up to the general

         15  Committee.  So I would just want to encourage my

         16  colleagues to pleas make notes on their agenda

         17  calendars to make the time to make the subcommittee

         18  meeting.  Thank you Madam Chair.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Monserrate.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Aye on

         23  all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lanza.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: I have a vote of 13 in

         11  the affirmative; zero in the negative; no

         12  abstentions.  All items are adopted.  Council

         13  Members would you please sign the Committee reports?

         14  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         16  much.  Sorry for the interruption to the

         17  Administration.

         18                 Councilman McMahon.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

         20  Chairwoman Katz.

         21                 I just have sort of a broad overview

         22  question, if you would, Mr. Cangemi.  It seems to me

         23  that as we sit here and consider this bill, we all

         24  have sort of the same goal here, which would be to

         25  provide for the people of the City of New York, a
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          2  seamless system of cell phone and broadband and

          3  whatever else is invented in the future of

          4  communication, and do it in a way that is as little

          5  intrusive -- that's the wrong grammar -- the least

          6  intrusive for the people.  And also with the concern

          7  of health, that maybe sometime down the road we find

          8  out, as Council Member Vallone said, that there's

          9  more hidden dangers to these things than we think

         10  now.

         11                 It just seems to me that the City is

         12  saying, it's not our job to regulate this.  But it

         13  also seems that the Federal Government has said it's

         14  not our job to regulate this.  And it's very

         15  historically very reminiscent, if you go back, and

         16  look at the discussions of what type of current we

         17  should use, and what type of telephones we should

         18  use.  And there was never agreement to adopt one

         19  system.  And regulation came, but it always came

         20  after things were out of control.  Why aren't we --

         21  and tell me what level of government should be

         22  addressing this?  If it needs to be addressed at

         23  all.  Because certainly the hodge- podge that

         24  Council Member Vallone is concerned about is an

         25  important issue.  Visually, if you assume that
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          2  there's no health danger whatsoever, visually, it's

          3  not the best system.

          4                 At the same time, in Staten Island,

          5  you can up through main thorofares, business

          6  thoroughfares, and be on your cell phone, and you

          7  know you're going to be cut off, because there isn't

          8  adequate service.  So we're not providing adequate

          9  service throughout the City, and at the same time,

         10  we're doing it in a way that is offensive to

         11  everybody.

         12                 What should the City be doing to

         13  address this issue? And don't -- because right now,

         14  I don't think we're doing enough. And if we can't do

         15  it, what should be advocating on the Federal level?

         16  That maybe one system has to be adopted.  Isn't

         17  there a better way to do this?

         18                 MR. CANGEMI: I think the Federal

         19  Government has laid out what they view as their

         20  vision, which is to have competition be a leading

         21  factor.  In terms of the health impact, they've set

         22  what they view to be the guidelines, and they've

         23  essentially ordered local governments to comply with

         24  what they set as standards.

         25                 I think that is a reasonable
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          2  approach, given that when large cellular networks

          3  are planned, it would be impossible to make reliable

          4  and a plan for buying equipment if in each and every

          5  jurisdiction, different equipment would have to be

          6  used, and different standards would have to be met

          7  with regard to that.

          8                 And I think when it comes to health,

          9  we should have one standard for the country. And it

         10  shouldn't necessarily vary by region.

         11                 I think what the Federal Government

         12  has done appropriately, is it has allowed with

         13  regard to zoning and land use, has allowed for local

         14  authority in those areas, with limitations, so that

         15  the process is not unduly burdensome or time

         16  consuming.  I think they've really kind of

         17  established through those guidelines and those

         18  guiding principles the right approach. And I look

         19  forward to working with you to figure that out.  We

         20  made our best attempt.  We think that it's been

         21  helpful to the roll out in the City in the

         22  development of a fairly robust infrastructure.  We

         23  have a unique environment in New York City.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But it's not

         25  working. Because in Staten Island, your cell phone
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          2  is not working, and on the FDR Drive it doesn't

          3  work.  There's so many places where, in critical

          4  locations, it's not working.  And at the same time,

          5  we have this hodge- podge of antennas, or almost

          6  antennas going up.  It just doesn't seem to be

          7  working.  Are you saying that it's working fine the

          8  way it is now?  Because if so, then you'd better

          9  explain to a lot of people on Staten Island why they

         10  don't have service, and explain to the people in

         11  Astoria why you have this visual nightmare of -- I

         12  think you would agree, if you look at those

         13  pictures, you would say, that's not an optimal

         14  situation.  There's got to be a better way to do it.

         15

         16                 MR. CANGEMI: I don't think I'm the

         17  person to address aesthetics, because frankly, what

         18  you see happening across the boroughs -- remember in

         19  the 1970s, kind of taking the El across the

         20  boroughs, what did you see on the rooftops?  You saw

         21  television antennas.  Because everyone needed an

         22  antenna.  And that was viewed as a necessary kind of

         23  aesthetic burden so to speak, in order to get this

         24  very valuable service, broadcast television.

         25                 And I found them to be ugly, but I'm
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          2  not really the judge of that.  But that was what

          3  local governments and governments allowed to happen

          4  in order to allow for the free broadcast television.

          5    And it worked quite well.  Those have largely gone

          6  away.  Those have largely disappeared in the era of

          7  satellite television and cable TV.  They're gone.

          8  And you have another new technology that has kind of

          9  taken its place.  Not as expensive as the TV

         10  antennas that you saw on rooftops across the City --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But we're

         12  certainly moving in that direction.  I mean, I don't

         13  think the future --

         14                 MR. CANGEMI: I don't think we'll ever

         15  move in that direction.  I don't think we will.

         16  Because that involved multiple antennas on every

         17  single rooftop in order to provide it.  I don't

         18  think we're talking about that kind of situation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Well, I'm not

         20  satisfied with the answer, because I think you're

         21  not agreeing -- well, in full reality, that we have,

         22  we're on the cusp of a new era.  Everybody knows

         23  that.  We have to come up with unified standard.  We

         24  have to do a better job, because there's only going

         25  to be more of these antennas.  There's going to be
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          2  more of an outcry to do something about it.  And

          3  unfortunately, the train has already, in many cases,

          4  left the station.

          5                 One last question.  --

          6                 MR. CANGEMI: I think we agree.  Maybe

          7  I'm saying it differently.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Maybe we're

          9  just wrapping the gift differently.

         10                 In places like Staten Island, where

         11  you have telephone poles still extensively, why

         12  aren't they used?

         13                 MR. CANGEMI: There are -- there is a

         14  pole attachment act.  There are some regulatory

         15  requirements regarding the use of the telephone

         16  poles.  I believe that they are available to

         17  wireless companies for use.  I'm not sure, in terms

         18  of overall, in the context of a pole attachment act,

         19  I believe they are available. But you still need

         20  power, so they would have to have power there. They

         21  would also need to have boxes that fit on those

         22  poles.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And street

         24  lights.

         25                 MR. CANGEMI: Absolutely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That would

          3  certainly be in many places, and a more orderly way

          4  to address the problem.

          5                 MR. CANGEMI: We have the

          6  Administration --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And provide

          8  service where there is no service.

          9                 MR. CANGEMI: The Administration has

         10  entered into six franchise agreements with companies

         11  that are going to do that. They're going to be

         12  installing much smaller types of equipment on City

         13  light poles.  To fill in those gaps.  And we're

         14  excited because we do have applications in Staten

         15  Island to hopefully fill in the gaps in the coverage

         16  in Staten Island, which we're aware of, and we agree

         17  with.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'd like to let

         19  Councilman Perkins vote.  Councilman Perkins, how do

         20  you vote?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'm going to

         22  vote aye on all, and I want to thank my colleague

         23  for that interesting dialogue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to

         25  continue calling the Council Members.  Please keep
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          2  in mind, I don't want to quash any conversation, or

          3  questions, but there are 30 people set to testify on

          4  this topic.  Councilman Gentile.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you

          6  Madam Chair.

          7                 I've been listening to this

          8  discussion about this build out of the cell phone

          9  antennas.  And I don't hear any discussion of any

         10  safety concerns that are considered when these

         11  alteration permits are issued.  Am I correct?  There

         12  are no safety concerns that are considered when

         13  these alteration permits are granted?

         14                 MR. CANGEMI: I came prepared to talk

         15  about the Reso., which does not address safety

         16  concerns.  There are Federal requirements that

         17  address safety concerns.  And therefore, locally, we

         18  do not address those.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Do not

         20  address them.

         21                 MR. CANGEMI: We're not allowed to.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You're not

         23  allowed to address safety issues.

         24                 MR. CANGEMI: To separately address

         25  them.  To have standards that are different than the
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          2  Federal Government has laid out.  Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And this

          4  might be more appropriate for Ms. Miller, as DOB.

          5  You have Fire Safety concerns. You have fire

          6  regulations on rooftops.  And DOB is issuing these

          7  alteration permits.  Do you consider any of the Fire

          8  Safety regulations that are a concern whether the

          9  rooftop door is locked, or unlocked.  Should be

         10  locked.  Should be open.  Cell phone companies want

         11  the door locked I understand.  But fire regulations

         12  say the door to the roof has to be open.  Do you

         13  consider any of those considerations in issuing

         14  these permits?

         15                 MS. MILLER: There is a review for

         16  code compliance as far as whether a door is open or

         17  locked, I do not believe that's part of a plan

         18  review for issuing a permit for these antennas.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Do you think

         20  it should be?            MS. MILLER: That's not

         21  something that's shown on a plan.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: What I'm

         23  saying is that if fire regulations require a door to

         24  be left open --

         25                 MS. MILLER: They have to comply with
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          2  the regulations regardless of whether it's on the

          3  plan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Well, what

          5  I'm saying is that my understanding is that those

          6  doors are locked once those antennas go up.  Because

          7  that's a requirement of the company.  That doors be

          8  locked.  Now that is a violation of a safety code.

          9  It's a fire safety code.

         10                 MS. MILLER: Then it would be a

         11  violation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And

         13  therefore, and alteration should not be issued in

         14  that case.

         15                 MS. MILLER: It's a separate issue I

         16  believe.  The plan review versus the violation --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: We're talking

         18  about safety concerns here.

         19                 MS. MILLER: If they're going to

         20  represent that they are going to keep it open, and

         21  have to keep it locked, then it would not be

         22  appropriate to get the permit.  But as far as the

         23  time of application, it is not something that is

         24  represented to us.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay.  So
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          2  it's not represented to you at the time of the

          3  application.  Does the DOB then do a check of these

          4  buildings that have these antennas to see whether or

          5  not the regulations are being met?  Whether or not

          6  these criteria that you list in TPPN of '98, whether

          7  those criteria are being met?  And whether or not

          8  the fire safety issues are being -- the fire code

          9  issues are being addressed?

         10                 MS. MILLER: We are complaint driven.

         11  To the extent that we get --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Complaint

         13  driven.  Meaning you don't check.

         14                 MS. MILLER: When we get a complaint

         15  about this, we would go out and we would inspect at

         16  that time.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So in other

         18  words, almost as if the applications are self

         19  certifying.  Someone comes in and says, I'm making

         20  an application for an alteration permit, and in this

         21  permit, I'm certifying that we meet all the

         22  criteria, TPPN, of 5 of '98.  And the permit is

         23  issued.  There's no checking in the first instance

         24  whether they do meet this criteria.  Am I correct?

         25                 MS. MILLER: Correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: There's no

          3  checking.  And then, once that permit is issued,

          4  there is no checking after the permit is issued as

          5  to whether or not they meet the criteria that you

          6  set forth in this TPPN.

          7                 MS. MILLER: Not automatically.  It

          8  would be a response to a complaint.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So in effect,

         10  it's a complete self certifying of the applicants,

         11  saying, I certify that we meet the criteria.  Is

         12  that correct?

         13                 MS. MILLER: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And I think

         15  that's where we run into the biggest problems.  We

         16  have -- I can tell you, we have towers in my

         17  district, in my area.  Bay Ridge/Bensonhurst.  That

         18  are higher than six feet over the rooftop.  That do

         19  not meet the criteria that you set forth in this

         20  TPPN.  And yet, they go up with alteration permits

         21  left and right.  Driving in this morning, right in

         22  Bay Ridge, on Third Avenue and 97th Street, a new

         23  tower is going up.  And I'm sure, if I pulled that

         24  permit, they have an alteration permit, and that

         25  structure that was on the ground this morning,
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          2  that's going up on the roof this afternoon, was

          3  higher than six feet.

          4                 MS. MILLER: I would clarify that.

          5  The Department does audit the application.  So a

          6  percentage of them are reviewed. And certainly in

          7  response to a complaint, we would review.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: How often do

          9  those audits take place?

         10                 MS. MILLER: Regularly.  A percentage

         11  is always reviewed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Is there any

         13  communication between FDNY, DOB, or DoITT,

         14  concerning the safety issues regarding the rooftop

         15  installation?

         16                 MR. CANGEMI: Actually, I Chaired a

         17  number of meetings between Buildings and the Fire

         18  Department about the placement of the antennas, and

         19  this TPN.  We had never heard this. At a number of

         20  meetings with the Fire Department officials, never

         21  heard this as a complaint.  So I'm glad you're

         22  bringing this up, this issue of the locked doors.

         23                 There are issues with regards to

         24  whether or not there is live voltage that the Fire

         25  Department is concerned about. Because there is a
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          2  connection to power from the antennas, and they

          3  wanted to be concerned.  Because when they fight

          4  many fires, they pierce the roof.  So they're

          5  swinging axes, and they want to make sure they're

          6  not swinging axes at things that will have live

          7  current.  So that has been a concern raised by the

          8  Fire Department in discussions with them, as well as

          9  placement, so that there isn't ever a wall of

         10  antennas to impair access to a roof in the event of

         11  a fire.  But the issue you raised is the first I'm

         12  hearing, Council Member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Well, I

         14  suggest that that's an issue that happens in every

         15  situation, and it needs to be addressed as a central

         16  issue.

         17                 Another issue is the changing of the

         18   --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman, if I

         20  may, there are 30 people testifying.  I don't want

         21  to put a limit on questions, because I don't like

         22  when Chairs do that to me.  But honestly, it has

         23  been a request that -- someone had suggested that

         24  the Administration stay to the end, which means that

         25  other Council Members that want to ask questions
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          2  would have to stay to the end. I don't want to do

          3  that to them.  I'd appreciate it if everyone would

          4  just keep their questions to a minimum.  Do you have

          5  one more question?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: One more

          7  question.  Thank you Madam Chair.

          8                 When you evaluate these alteration

          9  applications, do you do so just on the application

         10  itself?  Is there any consideration given to the

         11  fact that there are other cell phone towers up in

         12  the area?  In other words, do you consider the issue

         13  of over saturation when issuing alteration permits?

         14  Or do you evaluate it with blinders on?

         15                 MS. MILLER: We evaluate it building

         16  by building.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Building by

         18  building with no consideration of how many other

         19  buildings in the area have cell phone towers.

         20                 MS. MILLER: Right.  The limit of how

         21  much can be put on a rooftop is for the building,

         22  and we look at it only with respect to the building.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: With

         24  blinders, then.  No issue of over saturation.

         25                 MR. CANGEMI: Well, I wouldn't
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          2  describe it as blinders.  There are multiple

          3  technologies.  So you may have a particular area,

          4  say an area in Staten Island, where no matter what

          5  cell phone coverage provider you have, each of the

          6  companies, each of the now six, down to four

          7  companies, needs to have antennas.  So you may have

          8  an area where perhaps in residential areas, there

          9  may only be a commercial building that is

         10  appropriate for siting.  One building in a large

         11  neighborhood.  And that area, or that building will

         12  then be the building that most of the carriers are

         13  going to want to site on, because it is ideal for

         14  the coverage, it provides coverage for the most

         15  people.

         16                 So when you talk about saturation, I

         17  think you need to understand that it's a complex

         18  issue involving multiple technologies as well as

         19  trying to serve multiple customers using different

         20  technologies.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Madam Chair,

         22  I heard a lot about competition, making sure we have

         23  continued growth of competition.  But when

         24  questioned, there's been very little given in terms

         25  of the safety and the saturation issues.  And they
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          2  are just as important as maintaining the competition

          3  in the cell phone industry.  Thank you Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going now going

          5  to now go to Councilman Koppell, Councilman

          6  Martinez, and Council Member Quinn. I just would

          7  like to ask my colleagues to really stay on point on

          8  the legislation.  And if they have individual issues

          9  with the Department of Buildings, and different cell

         10  towers, perhaps the Department of Buildings could

         11  make themselves available to the Council Members at

         12  some point in the future.  Okay?  Councilman

         13  Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.  I think

         15  it's fair to say, at least it's my perception, that

         16  the major concern of people with respect to these

         17  towers is the concerns about safety.  Now, do I

         18  understand correctly that the City is precluded from

         19  looking at safety issues when issuing or not issuing

         20  this permit?  They can't take into account any

         21  concerns about safety, because of Federal

         22  regulations.  Is that true?

         23                 MR. CANGEMI: As a City official, I'm

         24  hesitant to use that term, preemption.  I like to

         25  view our powers broadly. Unfortunately, in this
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          2  instance, the answer is yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So the fact

          4  that people in the building might be concerned about

          5  the safety of their family, themselves, and so on,

          6  that, the City cannot consider.  Is that correct?

          7                 MR. CANGEMI: Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  That

          9  being the case, and that's because of Federal

         10  legislation, correct?

         11                 MR. CANGEMI: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  That

         13  being the case, nonetheless, all of us are concerned

         14  about the safety of our constituents.  I assume the

         15  City and the Administration as well.  So, have you,

         16  as an agency involved in the granting of these

         17  permits, looked at the safety issues independently

         18  of what the Federal Government is saying?]

         19                 MR. CANGEMI: We had, at the hearing

         20  that was conducted about a year ago, where this was

         21  discussed, the Department of Health was also here,

         22  and to paraphrase, I think they're description of

         23  the health issues would be that in order to actually

         24  identify health concerns that would be attributable

         25  to the cell phone antennas, as opposed to all the
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          2  other sources of radiation, would be near

          3  impossible.

          4                 We, as New Yorkers, are subject to

          5  various forms of RF emissions.  Your alarm clock.

          6  Your television.  And it's very difficult to conduct

          7  a study.  That was the issue at hand at the time,

          8  was whether or not we should be conducting a study.

          9  Extremely difficult to conduct a study.  It would

         10  take many, many years.  And at the end, would

         11  probably be inconclusive.  So what we've done, is

         12  frankly, put faith in our Federal Government on this

         13  issue, and also acknowledged that the equipment, the

         14  equipment that the companies are using fall well

         15  below the guidelines.  They're not using equipment

         16  that gets close to the outer boundaries of what the

         17  FCC allows.

         18                 So that has given us comfort, along

         19  with the difficult task of conducting a study that

         20  would probably not have very useful results at the

         21  end of the day.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would

         23  observe, and I acknowledge the Chair's request, so

         24  let me just make this following comment rather than

         25  doing it in the form of a question.  I'm not
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          2  suggesting, necessarily, that the City do a study.

          3  But I'm sure there are many studies being done all

          4  over the world on these issues by various academic

          5  institutions and others.  And I think that

          6  certainly, it would be worthwhile for the City to

          7  maintain a current file, and something from a year

          8  ago is already ancient in terms of technological

          9  knowledge.

         10                 I might also comment that the Federal

         11  Government has failed us as far as I know, with

         12  respect to safety studies a the World Trade Center

         13  site, where it now turns out that they said things

         14  were safe, when apparently, or at least many argue,

         15  they weren't.  So what I'm asking, not necessarily

         16  the City do a study, but that it remain fully aware

         17  of all the studies that have been done, so that if

         18  there is a danger looking at some studies have

         19  indicated a danger.

         20                 And the only other thing I'd mention

         21  is that while yes, we're subject to radiation from

         22  various sources and electromagnetic fields and all

         23  of that, from various sources, at least in the area

         24  of X- rays, which is a form of radiation, there are

         25  accumulative measures.  So that an individual can
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          2  withstand a certain amount of X- ray radiation, and

          3  if you go beyond that, it does pose a health danger.

          4    So people say, don't take too many X rays, for

          5  instance  Or if you're pregnant, don't fly too much,

          6  because you're subject if you go into high

          7  altitudes, of greater radiation.  And pregnant women

          8  are told not to fly too much.

          9                 So the fact that there are other

         10  sources doesn't say to me that we should ignore the

         11  amount of electromagnetic fields or other radiation

         12  that emanate here.  And I feel a lot better if you,

         13  representing Administration, instead of saying,

         14  well, we trust the Federal Government, said well,

         15  we've done, not necessarily our own study, but we

         16  have kept completely current on whatever studies are

         17  available, and none of them show that this is a

         18  particular danger. I think that the City has a

         19  responsibility, if you're issuing permits for these

         20  things, to at least do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  I'm going to

         22  try to keep this again, on point.  The City is

         23  basically saying they are preempted by the Federal

         24  Government on the FCC regulations pursuant to the

         25  issues of safety standards.  And I'm going to ask
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          2  Councilman Martinez and Council Member Quinn to try

          3  to be brief in their questions.  And I do suggest

          4  that if the Council has an issue with wanting the

          5  City to be more involved with the safety issues, I

          6  think that that's something we should discuss and

          7  maybe have our own Council look at the issue of

          8  preemption.  That might be the helpful way to go

          9  forward on that.  Okay?  Councilman Martinez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Well, Madam

         11  Chair, most of my colleagues have asked the

         12  questions concerning safety, and I think that we

         13  have a responsibility, even though we may have

         14  Federal regulations, to ensure the safety of our

         15  citizens, our constituents here locally in the City

         16  of New York.  I'll keep it short, but it's just

         17  unacceptable for us to hear that one, there are no

         18  concrete studies that address the safety issue

         19  conducted by the City agencies that have to do with

         20  this particular matter.  I know that in my district,

         21  when we see these cranes that are parked along the

         22  side, we think they're going to knock down a

         23  building, or a new building is coming on top of the

         24  one we currently have, because as Council Member

         25  Gentile mentioned, these towers are much taller than

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  six feet.  And the beams that are put on the roof to

          3  sustain these structures are pretty heavy.

          4                 And to hear from the Department of

          5  Buildings that there is no clear defined procedure

          6  as to the preapproval of these permits, is extremely

          7  concerning for our communities.  And we have a

          8  responsibility here in the City to do more than just

          9  trust what the Federal Government tells us to do.

         10  And we know that.  We have a history of the Federal

         11  Government telling things are safe, when they're

         12  not.  We have a history of the Federal Government

         13  responding and when they have to respond, and they

         14  haven't.

         15                 And I believe that this issue, I want

         16  to commend Council Member Peter Vallone and  I want

         17  to add my name to this resolution, in support of

         18  this resolution, because we have a responsibility to

         19  come up with a study that tells us how safe it is.

         20                 I know that my colleague Mike

         21  McMahon, in his district, and in that particular

         22  borough, they told us we were safe there, and as a

         23  result, we found many families that, because of

         24  radioactive and radiation, are now suffering from

         25  cancer.  These are serious concerns that this City
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          2  has, this Administration has a responsibility.  We

          3  all want to be connected.  We all want to have a

          4  cell phone, but I think health comes before any

          5  other issue.  And think that the City has failed in

          6  doing that.  The City has failed in telling citizens

          7  throughout the City of New York, that this antenna

          8  is either safe or not.  That the structure of the

          9  building is safe or not.  I live on the sixth floor

         10  apartment.  And I just recently had a water leak.

         11  When we had all the rains.  Now I'm wondering, that

         12  structure that's on top of the roof where I'm living

         13  at, is it safe?  Would that roof hold off that

         14  structure? The Buildings Department can't answer

         15  that because we don't, according to what we just

         16  heard from them, you get a permit and there's no

         17  clear structure to follow up in terms of inspecting

         18  the structure that went up on the roof.  --

         19                 MS. MILLER: The Department requires

         20  full compliance with the code.  It does not get a

         21  permit unless it is certified as complying with the

         22  safety requirements.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But can you

         24  tell me that before a structure is put up, the

         25  Building Department goes there and look at the roof
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          2  to see that it will hold that structure up there?

          3  Because they're pretty heavy equipment going up

          4  there.

          5                 MS. MILLER: The Department relies on

          6  professional certification for all sorts of

          7  construction going on in the City.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But what I

          9  think you're hearing from us, which is what we hear

         10  from our constituents, is that we want to see an

         11  inspector of Building Departments go to those roof,

         12  make a clear study is this structure going to be

         13  safe? Is that roof going to hold that heavy

         14  equipment that's going up there?  Again, I'm telling

         15  you from experience.  I live on the sixth floor

         16  apartment in Washington Heights.  And when we had

         17  the week of rains, I had a water leak.  And I'm

         18  wondering is that roof safe enough to hold that

         19  structure above me?  Those are the questions that

         20  constituents are asking.

         21                 And the same is true in terms of Fire

         22  Safety.  You know that these structures in there,

         23  they have heavy air conditioning both in the

         24  basement and in the roof where the cables are run

         25  through.  This is a major, major operation and we
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          2  have no clear document that tells us this is safe.

          3                 And we should even consider Council

          4  Member Vallone, some sort of certification in the

          5  building to let tenants know if this is safe with

          6  this structure to live in those buildings.  This is

          7  a serious concern.  And the Administration, and we,

          8  as a Council, have a responsibility to address the

          9  concern, forgetting about what the Federal

         10  Government tells us.  We need to conduct our own

         11  study to make sure that it's safe to put those

         12  structures there.  Thank you Madam Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right.  I'm

         14  going to say once again, this is an application, a

         15  resolution for a ULURP process. If the Council and

         16  the constituents and folks that are here and the

         17  advocate groups from both sides would like to talk

         18  about the safety concerns, I think that's very

         19  important.  We are going to ask the Council, Council

         20  Member Martinez and Council Member Vallone to look

         21  into the safety aspects.

         22                 My concern is that we've looked at

         23  this piece of legislation and think that that's

         24  going to encompass it.  And it won't.  ULURP, by

         25  definition, will actually dismiss that sort of
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          2  issue.  Because it's land use.  But I do think that

          3  it's a discussion we need to have.  And we're going

          4  to ask Chris Collins to look into the legalities and

          5  how we can take an affirmative role in making sure

          6  that the cell phone towers are safe.  And make sure

          7  that there is those issues are analyzed.  Council

          8  Member Quinn.

          9                 Again, I'm going to make this request

         10  once again. If we can be brief.  There are 30 people

         11  to testify.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.  My

         13  question kind of follows perfectly with the ones

         14  just answered by Council Member Martinez.

         15  Obviously, there are lots of concerns and issues out

         16  there about the health effects of these cell towers.

         17    And I know that may not be a complete ULURP issue,

         18  but as Chair of the Health Committee, I need to

         19  raise this issue.  And obviously, it's no surprise

         20  that there are these concerns out there.

         21                 Like any scientific question, there

         22  are some studies that say there's no problem,

         23  there's some studies that say there is a problem.

         24  And this is not a new issue.  We need to only think

         25  back to when they were running power lines over the
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          2  Midwest, and there were reports and concerns that

          3  those power lines going near people's homes were

          4  causing brain cancer in children.  Again, an issue

          5  which science ended up being able to not say clearly

          6  say yes or no on it.

          7                 Last year, at the urging of Council

          8  Member Vallone, and others, the Council passed a

          9  resolution requesting that the City's Department of

         10  Health conduct a study on this matter, so we could

         11  have a City study.  I know there's studies --

         12  obviously the Federal issues -- there's been studies

         13  done in England.  But we really felt it was

         14  important to the City Council for our public health

         15  agency to give us, the City Council, their take on

         16  the issue.  And I have not received any information

         17  from DOH about the status of our request, the

         18  likelihood of it happening.  I think we could all

         19  agree that if we had such a study at today's

         20  hearing, it would be very useful.  Whatever it says,

         21  useful information for all of us to consider.

         22                 You may not know, since you're not

         23  the Department of Health, A, what is the status of

         24  them following up on our request, which we've sent

         25  through resolution.  And if you don't know, I'll do
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          2  it myself also, but I would ask that you, as the

          3  Administration, carry the message back that the

          4  Council would like an update from the Department of

          5  Health on the status of that study.  I think we

          6  really couldn't do that in the Council.  We can look

          7  at some of the safety issues quite effectively with

          8  our staff, but we don't have the doctors and the

          9  scientists that DOH does, to do that type of a

         10  study.  We need it done by them.  So do you know the

         11  status on that?

         12                 MR. CANGEMI: I don't know the status.

         13    I did testify along with DOH last year when that

         14  reso was introduced.  And I just to reiterate, I

         15  think what the Department of Health's perspective

         16  was, on that, to paraphrase, they really should be

         17  asked directly, that the study would have to be very

         18  long term, so when you say we'd like to have the

         19  results and we're a year later, I don't believe it

         20  would be a study that could be conducted in a

         21  timeframe of a year or two, or even five.  What they

         22  testified to was something in the magnitude of over

         23  a decade.  And that even in that situation, the

         24  ability to actually have a study that could reliably

         25  distinguish this RF emissions from other RF
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          2  emissions that we're subject to was one that they

          3  doubted.

          4                 So I don't know the answer to your

          5  question, but I just wanted to reiterate that.  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Let me just say

          7  a couple things about that point.  One, if you could

          8  go back and get an official answer from DOH.  Two,

          9  if it takes longer, all the more reason to start

         10  immediately.  And although these types of studies do

         11  take -- the longer they are, the better they are.

         12  Quite frankly, because you have more comprehensive

         13  medical information. But they also work in the way

         14  that along the road, of these studies, there is

         15  milestones and markers.  So before their completion,

         16  one can analyze the data and have information that

         17  is useful.

         18                 And it's interesting because both

         19  those who are concerned about cell towers, and the

         20  industry -- I've heard from the industry.  They

         21  would like this study done, because it would be an

         22  unbiased look at it.

         23                 The last thing that I want to say,

         24  the final point you made, was like, well there's no

         25  point in doing a study because it won't show
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          2  anything anyway.  That is not helpful to either side

          3  of this debate, because this is a concern.  It's an

          4  issue.  There has to be -- I don't believe that DOH

          5  conducting a study would yield no useful

          6  information, or no final determinations.  I just

          7  don't accept that.  That hasn't -- and I don't think

          8  actually DOH would say that.  And I don't think it's

          9  useful to say that our Department of Health can't

         10  yield information that would be informative to this

         11  process.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Felder.

         13                 This is going to be the last

         14  questioner for the Administration.  Peter Vallone

         15  has requested a follow up since it is his

         16  legislation.  I'll give him a minute for follow up.

         17  Councilman Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You didn't

         19  tell me to be short.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I trust you that

         21  much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Alright.

         23  Whatever you say. I don't have a question.  I just

         24  wanted to know whether anyone has any information

         25  this issue on how this is handled in other
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          2  localities in this country.  Similar localities.

          3  Whether anything is being done.  In Chicago, or

          4  other cities of concentration on this ULURP issue.

          5  You don't have to answer the question, because I

          6  want to be different than anybody else.  All I'd

          7  like to say is that if anyone has any information

          8  like that, I would appreciate your forwarding it to

          9  me, whether it's the land use staff.  If we have

         10  information like, or if the City does, I think it

         11  would

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: In think that's a

         13  great idea.  If the Administration -- I know we've

         14  had these discussions -- could forward that

         15  information of what happens in other districts.  And

         16  also our staff, just so everybody knows, is putting

         17  together a study on how other things go through

         18  their process in the City of New York, to be placed

         19  on buildings and in areas like that.

         20                 Councilman Vallone, a very brief

         21  follow up.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you

         23  very much Madam Chair.  I won't let you speak,

         24  unfortunately, because I only have a minute.  But

         25  Councilman Felder, my Chief of Staff has the LA
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          2  zoning resolution which covers cell phone towers and

          3  what they require out there, a minimum requirement

          4  of ten feet from the end of the roof.  Here in New

          5  York City they put them on parapets. Eighty year old

          6  parapets.  What they require out there is they have

          7  to have the least possible impact on the visual

          8  environment, only 25 percent visible from the

          9  street.  They have to provide evidence of co-

         10  location efforts, and efforts to find other sites if

         11  this site is not appropriate.  And they have to

         12  prove things like money wasn't the motive for this

         13  spot, that there's an actual need.  And most

         14  important, as I said, they have to prove need.  This

         15  is in the zoning resolution in Los Angeles.  So no

         16  one in this room can tell us that we're asking for

         17  anything that's out of the ordinary, that's going to

         18  shut down the industry.

         19                 We're discussing the Federal

         20  Government's job to regulate.  Mr. McMahon and

         21  Council Member Koppell said this.  They have two

         22  inspectors.  Not just for Astoria, not just for New

         23  York. But for the entire Northeast coast of the

         24  United States.  Number one.  And number two, they

         25  passed their health standards back in 1996 in the
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          2  Federal Telecommunications Act.  Those were based on

          3  studies done in 1986.  That's the last thing they

          4  ever did.  Those studies, for example, don't

          5  differentiate between a kid, and an adult, or a

          6  senior citizen when it comes to the health effects

          7  of these cell phone antennas.  That's the technology

          8  we're using right now.  So the Federal Government

          9  has entirely abdicated it's responsibility.

         10                 And last, when you discuss -- Council

         11  Member Koppell discussed safety concerns that we are

         12  not able to address.  Health concerns, we are

         13  absolutely able to address.  Building concerns, fire

         14  concerns, aesthetic concerns, those type things.

         15                 So I have many more question, but in

         16  deference, and thank you very much Council Member

         17  Katz for allowing me to do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         19                 If the Administration could stick

         20  around for a little while in case there's any

         21  questions, that would be great.

         22                 Just so all my colleagues know what's

         23  going to happen now, we have 30 folks testifying.

         24  For everyone who is here in the audience to testify,

         25  I'm going to put a two- minute clock on. This is not
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          2  going to be the last hearing.  We are not voting

          3  this out today, which means we are going to have

          4  another hearing on this.  For today, we're opening

          5  up the discussion.

          6                 So if I can have in panels, I'm going

          7  to do for, a panel for the resolution and a panel

          8  against the resolution.  I'm going to ask the

          9  Sergeant- at- Arms to put a fifth chair at the

         10  table, so that we can have a larger panel.

         11                 And I'm going to start with Josephine

         12  Beckmann, from Community Board Ten; Madeleine

         13  Henley, from the Concerned Citizens of Bay Ridge;

         14  Chris Proscia, from St. Anselm's Grammar School.

         15  Can I also have Peter Di Salvo?  And Mary from

         16  Astoria Neighborhood Coalition.

         17                 Councilman Sanders, how do you vote

         18  on the agenda please?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you

         20  Chairwoman.  I vote yes to all.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And Councilman

         22  Seabrook?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         24  Madam Chair.  I vote yes to all.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  I thank
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          2  all of the panelists for coming.  When you testify,

          3  can just please identify yourselves for the record.

          4  I ask the Sergeant- at- Arms to please put a two-

          5  minute clock.  Thanks.  Thank you for coming out,

          6  everyone today.

          7                 MS. BECKMANN: Thank you Chairwoman

          8  Katz.  I'd also like to thank our Council Member,

          9  Vincent Gentile for his work on this effort.  My

         10  name is Josephine Beckmann, and I am the District

         11  Manager of Brooklyn Community Board Ten, which

         12  includes the communities of Bay Ridge, Dyker

         13  Heights, and Fort Hamilton.

         14                 On September 7th, and again on

         15  November 1, 2005, a joint meeting of the

         16  Environmental, Housing, Communications, and Zoning

         17  and Land Use Committees met, to discuss the

         18  proliferation of cellular antennae and base stations

         19  within the community of Board Ten area.  After

         20  lengthy discussions, the following motion was

         21  adopted by our committee, and was overwhelmingly

         22  supported last night in a vote by the school board.

         23                 The motion supports the repeal of the

         24  New York City Department of Buildings TPPN number 5,

         25  1998 to the extent that it does not require a
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          2  special permit.  It supports City Council Resolution

          3  1035 subject to the addition of the following

          4  language. We would like to see language that

          5  includes the structural effects to the building and

          6  the general safety of installation.  The

          7  physiological effects posed to human beings caused

          8  by the proposed structure, and the cumulative

          9  effects caused by multiple installations of base

         10  stations and antennae in the district.  The

         11  aesthetic effects of the community in general.  Fire

         12  fighting effects on the FDNY.  Noise, light and air

         13  effects, and cumulative effects caused by multiple

         14  installations.

         15                 Special permits shall be subject to

         16  periodic review or permits shall be renewable by the

         17  New York City Planning Commission.

         18                 The Board also recommends that the

         19  special permit have enforcement and remedies that

         20  must extend beyond the current violation process.

         21  Fines increase with escalating penalties.

         22                 Respectfully submitted.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         24                 MS. HENLEY: My name is Madeleine

         25  Henley.  I reside in Community Board Ten.  I'm part
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          2  of a group of concerned citizens. This situation of

          3  proliferation of cell phone towers in our

          4  neighborhood, which is now up to 22.  Twenty- two in

          5  Bay Ridge. This is not including the districts of

          6  Bensonhurst and Dyker Heights.  Which also contain

          7  many installations.

          8                 It came to our attention when one was

          9  place outside my window at two in the morning by T-

         10  Mobile.  At two o'clock in the morning.  DOB said

         11  they are complaint driven.  I filed a complaint.

         12  Nothing was done.  I understand that this is about

         13  land use.  The land I purchased in 1992, in my

         14  little community of Bay Ridge, home of one- family

         15  houses, churches, synagogues, schools, is no longer

         16  residential.  The land I use is industrial.

         17                 I have a tower within 20 feet of my

         18  son's bedroom window.  There are as, I believe

         19  Councilman Martinez mentioned, there are heating and

         20  air conditioning units that are massive. Either on

         21  the roof in some installations or in the basement.

         22                 It's my understanding that the backup

         23  batteries contain sulfuric acid.  This is an

         24  industrial use.  This has no place next to a child's

         25  bedroom window.
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          2                 I don't know about radiation.  I'm

          3  not a physicist, I'm not a biologist.  All I know

          4  is, that if these things blow up, or if one of the

          5  antenna falls on my head, I will be hurt.  And so

          6  will my neighbors, and their children.

          7                 Thank you very much, and thank you

          8  Councilman Gentile.

          9                 MR. PROSCIA: My name is Christopher

         10  Proscia.  I'm representing St. Anselm's Grammar

         11  School in Bay Ridge in Vincent Gentile's district.

         12                 We have a proliferation as Madeleine

         13  said.  I have, from the web site, that this cell

         14  phone companies don't know that exists, we have a

         15  listing of every neighborhood, Borough Park, Park

         16  Slope, Bay Ridge.  The average is one to two per

         17  neighborhood.  Bay Ridge now has 23.  Three

         18  surrounding my son's grammar school.  They are

         19  putting a garage- sized repeater building within 40

         20  feet of the windows of this grammar school.  With

         21  the antennae directing right into the classrooms.

         22                 I have 475 pages of RF radiation

         23  danger tests that have been going on for years.  And

         24  this is long term.  It does cause problem.  Ossining

         25  High School was sold a sales pitch from a company,
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          2  and they sued them.  They won.  You can go on the

          3  web site.  It's 25 pages long.  Just to let you know

          4  what happened.

          5                 And children are the most

          6  susceptible, because their brains are growing till

          7  they're 18.  Increased double- stranded DNA genetic

          8  material, changes in blood brain barrier.  Cellular

          9  morphology.  Cell death.  Changes in neural -- I

         10  can't even pronounce the words.  Decreased memory.

         11  Retarded learning. Increased blood pressure.  Damage

         12  to eye cells.  This is happening. We are -- my

         13  school, they put in three.  They just put in another

         14  one last week, and we lost the fight last night with

         15  the judge, saying come to us with more medical

         16  evidence.

         17                 It's not that clear cut.  I have four

         18  more lists. I have a company that sell you for your

         19  apartment building, antennas and everything, and at

         20  the very last page, it has in red, While radiation

         21  dangers are proposed to be low, and are not proven,

         22  don't take chances with RF emissions.  This is a

         23  company that's making money on these things.  And

         24  they're telling you this.

         25                 You have to stop it.  We have to do
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          2  something about this, and the kids.  They're taking

          3  kids out of the school, my son's school because of

          4  this.

          5                 MR. DI SALVO: My name is Peter Di

          6  Salvo.  Like Chris, my son goes to St. Anselm's

          7  also.

          8                 I'm here because I'm not against cell

          9  phone towers. I'm against the regulations as to

         10  where they can be placed.  I find it amazing that a

         11  tower like this and a repeater station could be 30

         12  to 40 feet away from a school, where kids are seven,

         13  eight, nine hours a day.  Every day, for nine years.

         14    Except for Summer time.

         15                 The City regulates where, or how

         16  close a pornography shop can be to a school, yet

         17  they have nothing to say about where cell towers can

         18  be in relation to a school.  I think that's amazing.

         19

         20                 I am also a New York City

         21  Firefighter.  And out of our regulations and our

         22  study material, in AUC 331, which is an "all units"

         23  circular, it states that 5.6, when operating on the

         24  roof, if there's a fire in the building, "Do not

         25  operate directly in front of antennas".  This is all
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          2  in relation to the cell towers. "Studies have shown

          3  that direct exposure to radio waves for extended

          4  periods may cause health problems".  This is safety.

          5    In 6.15 in the same circular, says "Avoid contact

          6  with the antennas and refrain from prolonged

          7  activity in close proximity to the antenna".

          8  They're talking about prolonged activity.  I could

          9  tell you that on the fire ground, during a fire in a

         10  building, the longest that we would be on a roof of

         11  a building that's on fire, may be a half hour,

         12  forty- five minutes, maybe an hour.  If the fire is

         13  going that long of a period of time, we're usually

         14  called off the roof, because the building may be in

         15  danger of collapse.

         16                 So they're telling us not to be on

         17  the building for a prolonged period of time in front

         18  of the antennas, or near the antennas.  Our children

         19  are in the school seven or eight hours a day.  For

         20  many, many days during the year.  And I find it to

         21  be amazing that the cell phone companies, Sprint and

         22  Nextel, would do what they did, knowing a school was

         23  right there.  Thirty feet away. Forty feet away.

         24                 MS. VAVRUSKA: I don't know if I'm

         25  supposed to be on this panel.  Is this panel for
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          2  people who are opposed to the resolution?  Or in

          3  favor of it.  My name is Mary Vavruska.  I don't

          4  know if you had called me.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: We'll wait

          6  for you for the next panel.

          7                 Council Member Vallone.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you

          9  Council Member Martinez.  I just want to commend all

         10  of you for coming down today. It's not an easy thing

         11  to do.  I know you have jobs and children. Let me

         12  continue to commend you for a second.  It was people

         13  in my neighborhood, like Mary Gonzalez who is here,

         14  and others, who brought this to my attention.

         15  Otherwise, I wouldn't be involved. And by bringing

         16  it to my attention, that's why we're here today. And

         17  I've somehow become a world leader on this issue.

         18  I'm not saying this to tout myself, I'm saying this

         19  because it's because of the people like you, who got

         20  involved, and brought it to me, and you brought it

         21  to Council Member Gentile.  So keep up the work.

         22  Because the more you bring attention to this, the

         23  more changes will happen.

         24                 Let me ask you a quick question.

         25  When you came to that number of 22 or 23 towers in
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          2  Bay Ridge, where did you get that figure from?

          3                 MS. HENLEY: An individual on the

          4  Upper West Side. Because this has really encompassed

          5  every neighborhood in the City. We have

          6  neighborhoods that never even knew of each other

          7  until this issue came up.  There's an individual on

          8  the Upper West Side who started a program, gave us a

          9  database.  And just citizens like myself would walk

         10  through the neighborhoods, and visually site them,

         11  go on line to the DOB database just to see if an

         12  alteration permit had been issued, so we'd have

         13  something to back us up.  And we began listing these

         14  installations on this web site.  All of these

         15  installations to our knowledge, would appear nowhere

         16  else. Because they were erected prior to Intro. 149.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  I just

         18  want to make sure that you were using the web site.

         19                 MR. DI SALVO: It's nycissues.org

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I wanted to

         21  make sure that you were using the law that we passed

         22  here in Council, which would keep track.  But I also

         23  wanted you to know that that bill is not

         24  retroactive.  So anything that is before that is not

         25  there.  And I can assure you, you have well more
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          2  than 22 in Bay Ridge.

          3                 I have hundreds and hundreds,

          4  probably over five hundred at a minimum in Astoria,

          5  so you have well more than that that you can't see

          6  from the street, or you just haven't noticed. But

          7  continue to use those resources.

          8                 I'd like a copy of that Fire

          9  Department memo that you mentioned.  The distance of

         10  safety, avoid prolonged exposure. For the Council

         11  Members who haven't seen this, distance of safety,

         12  avoid prolonged exposure.  This is outside someone's

         13  bedroom window.  It's seven and a half feet away.

         14  This also goes up there. It says, maintain a minimum

         15  distance of seven feet.  If this was across the

         16  street, by the way, from the school, down the block

         17  from my house.  They took down the ones facing the

         18  school, but these are still up, facing the school

         19  yard.

         20                 MR. DI SALVO: If you want to see the

         21  epitome of this in Bensonhurst, on 75th Street and

         22  18th Avenue, you come down from 19th Avenue, and

         23  then the same exact structure that they're putting

         24  up next to our school, is on a small pizzeria.

         25  Right on the roof of a three- story building.  It is
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          2  such an eyesore, the antennas are surrounding the

          3  building.  That gives you an idea of what's going to

          4  be at our school.  And the Council Member, Mr.

          5  Koppell, was asking for -- I have the Board of

          6  Education in the City of Los Angeles, their regular

          7  meeting order of business, they have in their notes

          8  that the Board of Education opposes the future

          9  placement of cellular communication towers on or

         10  immediately adjacent to school property currently

         11  owned by the district until appropriate regulatory

         12  standards are adopted.

         13                 And New Zealand will not permit them.

         14    Florida, England.  So you guys are the people what

         15  we need.  Because right now, --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You're

         17  absolutely right. These studies are over 20 years

         18  old, and now, when they're across the street from

         19  our schools and our kids, our children are being

         20  used as guinea pigs in this ongoing technological

         21  experiment. These companies have the outrageous,

         22  unmitigated gall to place them across the street

         23  from schools, and then come in and say, we don't

         24  have any right to regulate them.

         25                 So I want to thank you, and I know

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  there's a lot of people waiting, so I want to thank

          3  you for coming down and stay involved, and keep up

          4  the good works.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ?  I've got

          6  some more questions.  Council Member Al Vann, do you

          7  want to cast your vote?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: On the land use

          9  items?  How did you vote, Mr. Chair?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I voted

         11  aye.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I vote nay.  No,

         13  no, no.  I correct that.  I vote aye as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Council

         15  Member Sanders and Council Member Gentile.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you Mr.

         17  Chair for this very worthy hearing, and I want to of

         18  course, applaud Council Member Vallone for

         19  galvanizing the City Council on this issue.  I too,

         20  I represent Southeast Queens, and I too, have found

         21  a profusion of these antennas seemingly like

         22  mushrooms.  One day you go to bed, and the next day

         23  you have an antenna around.  Now, I have heard

         24  arguments for, and against, and I wish that we had

         25  some definitive arguments.  I must take the moment
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          2  to chide the industry for not doing more on this

          3  issue.  More in the sense of studying the effects,

          4  and giving us some definitive answers here.  Some

          5  definitive health answers here.  I believe that the

          6  onus, if you wish, is on the industry.  Followed by

          7  government.  If the industry cannot do it, then

          8  government must do these things.

          9                 So I'm looking forward to hearing

         10  from the industry the solid information that they

         11  will present to this body and to bodies like this

         12  across America, to say that there is no danger. In

         13  the advent that they cannot show this, then I think

         14  it's our responsibility to err on the side of

         15  caution.  To err on the side of our children, if you

         16  wish.  So I'm looking forward to that information.

         17                 I must apologize that at high noon,

         18  12 o'clock, I have to go and get ready for my own

         19  hearing, but I'm hoping that I will hear from the

         20  industry and they will allay my fears before then.

         21  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Gentile.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you

         24  Madam Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I figured he didn't

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  see the change.  At least I'm hoping that was the

          3  case.  I will ask, since I just came from the

          4  outside and walked in here, I will ask the Sergeant-

          5  at- Arms to maybe open a window.  It's very stuffy

          6  in here. I'm making some executive decisions myself.

          7    Councilman Gentile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you

          9  Madam Chair. And I want to thank all of my

         10  constituents here for their advocacy and this is

         11  really a long- term fight.  And we're going to

         12  continue this.  I know we're scheduled to do some

         13  activity in our district on Saturday, and we're

         14  going to continue with this issue.

         15                 But I'm curious about the Community

         16  Board Ten resolution.  And I haven't had a chance --

         17  I don't think you've passed it yet in the full Board

         18  have you?  Last night.  Okay, so I haven't had a

         19  chance to see it.  But could you expand on what you

         20  were talking about, about the periodic review and

         21  renewal periods?

         22                 MS. BECKMANN: Well, one of the issues

         23  that was raised at the meeting was the concern that

         24  some of these antennae would be erected and

         25  companies go out of business and they would remain
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          2  there endlessly.  Similar to variance applications

          3  that we have for local businesses that have to come

          4  back to us every few years, we felt that the same

          5  provisions should be incorporated in this

          6  resolution.  Because the number of companies are

          7  changing, someone had said earlier there were six,

          8  now there are four.  But yet, will there be any

          9  mechanism, or any regulation that will create a

         10  trigger to have these companies responsible to

         11  remove their equipment once they are no longer in

         12  business.  Or as technologies change.

         13                 MR. PROSCIA: I may be able to help a

         14  little bit with that.  On these web sites on these

         15  companies that solicit you as a building owner, or

         16  you solicit them, this is like buying a car, not

         17  leasing a car.  It's a money maker.  The owners of

         18  these buildings don't realize that Nextel, whatever

         19  company it is, Sprint, can walk away from their

         20  lease.  It's written in the lease that they can walk

         21  away and say, you know, the technology, in seven

         22  years, now we're going to something else.  We don't

         23  need the location.  Here, that building is yours.

         24  Now the building owner has to look at it. The

         25  neighbors have to look at it.  Or he has to get it
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          2  removed. It's like your old cell phone from ten

          3  years ago.  You give it to your niece or your nephew

          4  without the battery to play with it. It's up there.

          5  It's an eyesore.  There's devaluization (sic) of

          6  real estate.

          7                 You go on the web, and every question

          8  that you could ask is answered there.  Now there's a

          9  big proliferation of lightning strikes at these

         10  locations, because these repeater towers and

         11  antennas attracting lightning.  Now they're telling

         12  them that now it's mandated they have to run a three

         13  inch copper cable down into the foundation for

         14  lightning strikes.  Well that's beautiful. I have

         15  three of them surrounding my son's school, and when

         16  we have a big storm, what do we do?  It's a time

         17  bomb.  This is proliferating into something that's

         18  going to become an animal.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I understand

         20  that in some jurisdictions they go require removal

         21  of the equipment, but not in this situation in New

         22  York City.

         23                 MR. PROSCIA: They can walk away and

         24  say, you know what?  You keep it because now we

         25  don't even need that technology. They're
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          2  disconnected, but it's up there.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And it's my

          4  understanding too, that all the liability issues go

          5  to the building owner, not to the company.

          6                 MR. PROSCIA: I have it right here.

          7  There is no liability that can be held against the

          8  telecommunication industry for these sites.  So

          9  that's to me, I'm a retired New York City Police

         10  Officer, that's kind of strong- arming the public.

         11  That's like a felon getting away with murder.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Just a quick

         13  question Mr. Di Salvo. The issue of the roof door

         14  being locked or unlocked.  Can you address that

         15  issue?

         16                 MR. DI SALVO: Well, by regulations,

         17  the doors to the roofs have to be left unlocked.

         18  It's usually a push bar type of door.  I know from

         19  going on buildings inspections myself, a lot of

         20  times, if there is a cell tower on the building,

         21  that they do lock the doors.  Because they don't

         22  want people fooling around with the -- children

         23  going up maybe, and messing around with it,

         24  vandalizing it.  So that absolutely is a problem.

         25                 I think we're getting off the issue.
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          2  I think the issue that should be addressed here, and

          3  I don't know if it's a land use issue or if it's a

          4  health issue.  But the problem is putting these so

          5  close to a school where children are nine hours a

          6  day.  That has to be addressed.  In the situation

          7  with St. Anselm's, they could put it on the other

          8  side of the building, Nextel and Sprint could

          9  cooperate with us, and put it on a different

         10  building or at least further away from the building.

         11    You could not get any closer to our school where

         12  these children are, unless you were on the roof of

         13  the school itself.  That's how close it is.  It's

         14  literally on top of them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Or at least

         16  in the context of this hearing, that there be some

         17  kind of public notice and public hearing in terms of

         18  a BSA permit instead of a DOB permit.

         19                 Did you want to say something, Chris,

         20  before --

         21                 MR. PROSCIA: The issue here is to

         22  answer any questions in the resolution, I just

         23  jotted down quick, and on the last page A, says

         24  there are serious difficulties in locating such use

         25  in the nearby district, where it is permitted as
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          2  right of way. As we know, we have 23 in Bay Ridge.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: That we know

          4  of.

          5                 MR. PROSCIA: And C says, the

          6  installation of such telephone exchanges or

          7  communication structures will be positioned in such

          8  a way as to blend harmoniously with surrounding

          9  structures and buildings.  Well, they attempted, on

         10  this repeater, to put brick facing on to make it

         11  look like the building, but you're not addressing

         12  the issue that it sticks up past the building, the

         13  top of the building and the surrounding antennas.

         14  And D, the installation of such telephone exchanges

         15  or communication structures will not alter the

         16  essential character of the neighborhood or district

         17  in which it is proposed to locate.

         18                 Go to 75th Street and 8th Avenue.  It

         19  looks like the spaceship landed on top of the

         20  building.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Right.  I

         22  think that's the point we made that it violates

         23  their own TPPN.  Right.

         24                 Again, thank you very much.  Thank

         25  you Madam Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  Next

          3  panel.  Thank you very much.  Mary DeRyke, Phones

          4  for Life.  This is going to be in opposition to the

          5  legislation.  Nahum Kedem.  Ken Fisher, T- Mobile.

          6  Dan Collins, Pinnacle Telecom Group.  And Marc

          7  Paoloni, Fairway Markets.

          8                 Can the Clerk please announce the

          9  final vote of the Land Use Committee.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: All items on today's

         11  Land Use calendar are adopted by a vote of 17 in the

         12  affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         13  abstentions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         15                 I thank you all for coming.  And when

         16  you speak, can you please announce your name and

         17  your affiliation, and then testify.  Thank you very

         18  much.  The order is up to you.  I don't know what

         19  direction you want to go.

         20                 MR. PAOLONI: Good morning Chairwoman

         21  Katz and members of the Committee.  My name is Marc

         22  Paoloni.  I am Chief Information Officer of Fairway

         23  Market.  Thank you for holding this hearing, and for

         24  taking the time to hear our viewpoints about

         25  Resolution 1035, and the importance of wireless
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          2  service in New York.

          3                 Fairway Market has been in operation

          4  in New York City for more than 30 years, and in mid-

          5  March, 2006, we'll be opening our newest store in

          6  Red Hook, Brooklyn.  We employ more than 1,250 New

          7  Yorkers who work in one of our markets, or as part

          8  of Fairway Catering, or as administrative personnel.

          9                 Wireless phone service is imperative

         10  for our business and for our employees.  Each month,

         11  our employees use more than 8,500 wireless minutes.

         12  Our employees must have reliable wireless phone

         13  service to reach customers, and to maintain contact

         14  with coworkers.  In addition, wireless phones are

         15  important to Fairway Catering and delivery employees

         16  who also need to reach customers wherever they are

         17  in the City.

         18                 Perhaps more importantly, Fairway

         19  Market customers rely on wireless phones and data

         20  services to keep in touch with family and friends as

         21  they do their shopping.  It's increasingly common

         22  for on- the- go customers to carry on a conversation

         23  with a friend, finish up a business phone call, or

         24  verify their grocer list.  It's the way New Yorkers

         25  communicate, and reliable wireless phone coverage is
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          2  an important service that we need to provide to our

          3  customers.

          4                 Because Fairway Market sells fresh

          5  organic produce, meat and seafood, it's increasingly

          6  vital that our employees can talk to vendors located

          7  throughout the City.  In most instances, these

          8  communications occur via the wireless phones.

          9  Here's an example.  One of our slogans is "Buy fish

         10  from people who fish." Not surprisingly, our

         11  employees depend upon wireless phones to keep in

         12  touch with local fishermen throughout the day.  This

         13  helps us plan our inventory and ensure that we can

         14  offer our customers the most fresh, and the best

         15  variety of seafood available anywhere in New York.

         16                 We also have many employees who work

         17  in different locations on different days.  It's

         18  crucial they are able to communicate with each other

         19  without depending on going through a switchboard, or

         20  dependent on someone being in a spot where they can

         21  hear a page in what is very often a noisy

         22  environment.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can you just wrap

         24  up please.

         25                 MR. PAOLONI: Because Fairway Markets
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          2  are located in residential neighborhoods, and

          3  because we have employees working all throughout the

          4  City, any effort on the part of the City Council to

          5  complicate and impede the rollout of wireless

          6  infrastructure in residential areas will limit the

          7  ability of our business to operate successfully in

          8  New York City.

          9                 I appreciate your consideration of my

         10  testimony.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  And I'm

         12  sorry for making everyone keep it brief.  I hear

         13  though, that the reliability of the service is

         14  really the priority for your company.  Thank you

         15  very much.  Sir.

         16                 MR. KEKEM: Good morning Chairman Katz

         17  and members of the Committee.  I am Nat Kekem, a

         18  Vice President with GC Environmental, a full-service

         19  environmental consulting firm based in Westchester

         20  County, New York.  Since its founding in 1989, GC

         21  has offered a broad spectrum of engineering

         22  consulting services related to environmental

         23  assessment, management, and remediation.  We work

         24  with major cellular companies in the Northeastern

         25  United States to comply with the State and Federal
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          2  regulations under the National Environmental Policy

          3  Act, Federal Communications Commission, and State

          4  Historic Preservation Offices prior to carrier

          5  building any type of cellular sites, including

          6  rooftop antenna facilities.

          7                 Operations of all wireless antennas

          8  also must comply with the standards set in the

          9  Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996.  The

         10  Telecommunications Act contains important provisions

         11  concerning the placement of antennas and other

         12  facilities for use in providing personal wireless

         13  service.

         14                 After input from representatives of

         15  the Council and the Commissions, State Historic

         16  Preservation Officers, Indian tribes, the

         17  communications industry, and historic preservation

         18  consultants.

         19            The Programmatic Agreement establishes

         20  uniform procedures and standards for identifying

         21  historic properties, evaluating their historic

         22  significance and assessing any effect that the

         23  proposed antenna may have on those historic

         24  properties.  It says:

         25                 Before a carrier submits the
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          2  appropriate submission packet to a SHP, every

          3  carrier must provide written notice to the public of

          4  the planned cell site construction.  Such notice may

          5  be accomplished by 1, through a public notification

          6  provisions of the relevant local zoning or local

          7  historic preservation process for the proposed

          8  facility; or 2, by publication in a local newspaper

          9  of general circulation.

         10                 In alternative, a carrier may use

         11  other appropriate means of providing public notice,

         12  including seeking the assistance of the local

         13  government.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Sir, Let me just

         15  reiterate this for everyone testifying.  We really

         16  only have two minutes, and I think that you're

         17  handing in testimony as well, so it becomes part of

         18  the record.  If maybe folks can summarize what they

         19  are handing in, maybe that would be the most

         20  helpful.  What I'm hearing from GC Environmental is

         21  that there are Federal regulations for the standards

         22  of health and that that would be the appropriate

         23  standard in your opinion, that we follow in the

         24  City.  Is that basically --

         25                 MR. KEDEM: My testimony is about the
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          2  fact as a part of the National Agreement Historic

          3  Properties there are provisions for communications.

          4  And before each antenna site is being built, we

          5  provide the community boards notification which

          6  includes very descriptive details about the

          7  facility.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  This is all

          9  in your written testimony right?

         10                 MR. KEDEM: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. I'm going to

         12  really urge folks -- I don't want to cut you off

         13  mid- sentence.  I'm going to urge you, please, if

         14  you can't read it in two minutes, you have to modify

         15  it and you have to just give me a summary.  Okay?

         16                 Thank you very much. Ma'am.

         17                 MS. DE RYKE: Good morning.  Thank

         18  you.  Hopefully I can do my two minutes.  My name is

         19  Mary De Ryke.  I'm the Vice President of Operations

         20  at Phones for Life.  I am here representing Dr. Dee

         21  L'Archeveque, CEO and Founder of Phones for Life.

         22                 Phones for Life is a not- for- profit

         23  organization which has been working in the five

         24  boroughs and across the country to supply free,

         25  used, preprogrammed, one- button dialing emergency
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          2  cell phones for access to 9- 1- 1 emergency services

          3  for low income seniors and adults with serious

          4  disabilities.

          5                 Dr. L'Archeveque has treated senior

          6  after senior coming into the ER with illness and

          7  injuries exacerbated by delay in seeking and

          8  receiving emergency assistance.  I am here to

          9  address Resolution 1035, which we fear would

         10  restrict cell phone service in residential

         11  neighborhoods.

         12                 The stated intent of the resolution

         13  is protecting the health of all New Yorkers.  We

         14  respect the underlying intention to protect public

         15  health and safety, but feel it is critical that new

         16  regulation not inadvertently place millions of high-

         17  risk senior citizens and adults with serious

         18  disabilities at great risk with medical, safety, and

         19  other emergencies.

         20                 The seniors with our cell phones are

         21  specifically trained to keep the cell phone their

         22  person at all times, at home and in the community.

         23  Phones for Life seniors are economically

         24  disadvantaged, and cannot afford emergency call

         25  button services. It is essential to the function of
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          2  this free lifeline that cell phone service be as

          3  comprehensive as possible, directly in their homes

          4  and immediate communities.

          5                 If Resolution 1035 is passed and

          6  restricts cell phone towers and transmission

          7  equipment in residential communities, its impact on

          8  seniors will be measurable and potentially fatal.

          9                 We implore the Council to reconsider

         10  the implications of Resolution 1035, and we

         11  respectfully suggest that responsible land use

         12  controls be developed that also preserve and protect

         13  our most fragile and growing populations sector

         14  which is our elderly.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well done.  We're

         16  paying special attention to your testimony.

         17                 MS. DE RYKE: Thank you.  I appreciate

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Next.

         20                 MS. VAVRUSKA: Chairwoman Katz, and

         21  honorable members of the New York City Council as

         22  well.  My name is Mary Vavruska. I live at 34-10

         23  94th Street in Jackson Heights, Queens.

         24                 I am here today to testify as an

         25  individual on this resolution.  As one elected
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          2  official has said about me, I've always taken broad

          3  positions on issues, and never directed them to

          4  myself. Today, my testimony is personal.

          5                 From November 2004, to April 2005, I

          6  received daily treatments, seven days a week from

          7  the Visiting Nurse Service.  On some of those days,

          8  I also had to be treated by my attending physician.

          9  This meant that the nurse would call me on her

         10  cellular phone when she could get through, to tell

         11  me if she would be delayed because of an emergency

         12  with another client, inability to find a parking

         13  space, or a traffic problem.  I would then not wait

         14  for her, but to continue with my appointment with my

         15  attending physician, and she would schedule an

         16  evening nurse for my treatment.

         17                 If it were not for cellular phone

         18  service during this period of my medical disability,

         19  I could never had kept this regimen of treatment.

         20  Multiply my situation by the thousands of similar

         21  medically disabled persons, then add to that the

         22  thousands of physically disabled people who rely on

         23  cellular phones when in transit, or say, calling to

         24  find the status of their Access- A- Ride.

         25                 As it stands now, cellular service in
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          2  Queens has many blind spots.  This resolution will

          3  make the approval process for a cell site, I would

          4  say, up to ten times longer, with added expense to

          5  the cellular provider.  This can result in a

          6  disincentive to improve the service by the provider,

          7  and also pass on, of course, the additional cost to

          8  the consumer.

          9                 The Federal Communications Commission

         10  has published detailed procedures for cellular

         11  sites, and other sites as well, such as mobile

         12  radios antennas, radar, et cetera.  The whole

         13  frequency band, the whole spectrum.

         14                 Every one of these sites must be

         15  licensed by the FCC before being placed in

         16  operation.  The FCC requires detailed information

         17  about the site, which is on their database,

         18  including contact persons responsible for the site.

         19                 Now it may be, after listening to the

         20  testimony this morning, there might be a very good

         21  linkage between what the FCC maintains and their

         22  requirements for specific procedures and

         23  instructions where maybe a City agency could monitor

         24  compliance with those specific instructions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're going to
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          2  have to wrap up.

          3                 MS. VAVRUSKA: I see there's a case

          4  where a local government, the New York City Council

          5  is imposing its authority over an issue that is

          6  clearly a Federal mandate.  In imposing this

          7  resolution, you are depriving me, and every other

          8  person dependent on cellular phone service of the

          9  right to receive health care and other essential

         10  services when needed.  The result could be more

         11  serious illness and even death.

         12                 I am opposed to this resolution, and

         13  ask that you withdraw it from further consideration,

         14  but certainly put some well- constructed procedures

         15  in effect to comply with FCC regulations.  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         18  Councilman Fisher.

         19                 MR. FISHER: My name is Ken Fisher.  I

         20  was asked to comment on the specific resolution

         21  that's before you because I have some familiarity

         22  with the ULURP process.

         23                 And I want to note, I think

         24  basically, just three things.  My written testimony

         25  has been submitted, and I'm sure we'll have some
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          2  additional comments to submit in writing on some of

          3  the misinformation that was testified to earlier

          4  today.]

          5                 First of all, generally speaking, the

          6  Council doesn't regulate aesthetics of the City of

          7  New York.  You regulate peeling paint, you don't

          8  regulate graffiti.  You regulate light and air, you

          9  don't say what the color of the facade is.  You

         10  regulate building materials, but you don't regulate

         11  whether a parapet should be decorative or plain.

         12  And so, to single out one piece of equipment as

         13  opposed to air conditioners, chillers, big satellite

         14  dishes on sports bars, or any of the other permitted

         15  installations on rooftops, I would suggest, perhaps

         16  might be unwarranted.

         17                 Even in the landmarks context, it's

         18  about what's appropriate, and not necessarily what's

         19  pleasing.  Now if the Council wanted to undertake a

         20  review of all permitted rooftop installations, I

         21  think that there are many communities that would

         22  weigh in on that topic.

         23                 Secondly, I want to thank Council

         24  Member Vallone for being candid with this Committee

         25  when he said that this is about the health issues,
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          2  and that his purpose was to slow down the

          3  installations.  Because that has put this resolution

          4  within the four corners of the Federal

          5  Telecommunications Act, which prohibits local

          6  governments from regulating on that basis, and with

          7  that intent.  And there may be other actions that

          8  the Council could take, but based on the intent of

          9  the sponsor of this resolution, doesn't seem to be

         10  one of them.

         11                 And lastly, just on how we go about

         12  making public policy.  We're all certainly, of

         13  course, welcome to disregard the work that was done

         14  by the Federal Communications Commission, by the

         15  United States Congress, by the Public Service

         16  Commission, and even the testimony of the Department

         17  of Public Health at the Health Committee a few

         18  months ago, in which they said that they had found

         19  no material up until that point, that warranted

         20  regulation.  You can discount all of that, but you

         21  can't have your own physics. And that will be

         22  testified to later today.

         23                 And I would suggest that as a matter

         24  of public policy, that the fear of the unknown is

         25  not a basis for regulation. And while the Council

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  Members may feel that the burden is on the industry

          3  to prove the material is safe, and the equipment is

          4  safe, I would suggest that that burden has already

          5  been met, and that there needs to be more than the

          6  fear of the unknown to justify this Council taking

          7  further action.  Thank you.

          8                 MR. COLLINS: Good morning.  My name

          9  is Dan Collins. I'm a Chief Technical Officer with

         10  Pinnacle Telecom Group.  We're an independent

         11  engineering firm specializing in the business of RF

         12  exposure and compliance with FCC safety standards.

         13  And admittedly, our clients include all the cellular

         14  carriers who have a clear interest in this

         15  proceeding.  But they go beyond that to include

         16  government at all levels, from Federal all the way

         17  down to local.

         18                 It's obvious from the discussions

         19  around the table, not necessarily this one, that

         20  people think cellular antennas and their emissions

         21  are somehow unique.  And I'm here to say they're

         22  not.  It's been suggested before that there are a

         23  host of other radio services, and the fact is, the

         24  FCC defines more than 80 of those kinds of radio

         25  services, and if there's anything that makes
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          2  cellular is unique, it's because it's low- level

          3  power.

          4                 We've had radio use for

          5  communications in this country -- worldwide actually

          6   -- since 1896, in Marconi's days. We've had the

          7  kind of mobile communication characterized by

          8  today's cellular phones since 1935.  So this is not

          9  at all new.  What is perhaps new, is the popularity

         10  of the service and the nature of the technology

         11  brings the antennas a little closer to where we can

         12  all see them.

         13                 For cellular antennas though, and my

         14  business is to perform analysis of them

         15  mathematically, and to go out and measure these

         16  sites, that in accessible areas around cellular

         17  antennas, they are at levels that typically one

         18  hundred to a thousand or more times below the FCC's

         19  limit.  And our measurements at street level around

         20  a site show no difference before and after cellular

         21  antennas.  And the reason for that is there's

         22  leakage, RF leakage from everything that operates on

         23  electricity, and there's RF levels in the area from

         24  things like local broadcasters, et cetera.  And it

         25  tends to create an ambient level that masks the
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          2  introduction of yet one more, low- power cellular

          3  antenna.

          4                 Inside buildings, right under

          5  cellular antennas on rooftops, or right behind

          6  cellular antennas on the exterior facade of the

          7  building, the levels are actually lower than the

          8  levels I measure from refrigerator motors.  No one

          9  worries about refrigerator motors.  There's no need

         10  to worry about cellular antennas, at least to the

         11  extent that I'm hearing.

         12                 It has been said that Firefighters

         13  should be nervous directly in front of an antenna.

         14  And there was a warning sign that showed you're

         15  supposed to stay seven feet away.  The lawyers who

         16  wrote the warning sign are being overly cautious.

         17  The area of interest around a cellular antenna is

         18  about three feet in front of the antenna, at the

         19  same height of the antenna.  And all other areas of

         20  interest below, beyond, behind, further away than

         21  the seven feet, it's not an issue.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Questions?  Okay.  Councilman

         25  Vallone.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes.

          3  Everyone that just testified realizes that this

          4  exists everywhere else in the country? Enough of the

          5   "sky is falling", "this is going to shut down the

          6  industry".  "People are going to die".  You realize

          7  this exists in LA, Chicago, and everywhere else?

          8  Enough with the drinking of the Kool Aid here, okay?

          9  I understand Mr. Fisher is paid to represent them.

         10  But the rest of you -- Mr. Fairway Markets, who

         11  asked you to come down here today?  Who told you

         12  about this hearing, and asked you to come down here

         13  today? Which cell phone company?

         14                 MR. PAOLONI: (Not using microphone.)

         15  I'm a member of New York Wireless.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  You're

         17  a member.  You didn't mention that. You're a member

         18  of the New York Wireless.

         19                 Mr. GC Environmental. I have to laugh

         20  when you mentioned Community Board notifications.

         21  Are you aware of these things, how they actually go

         22  up?  There's absolutely no Community Board

         23  notification.  In fact, they go up two o'clock in

         24  the morning, and the people who are putting them up

         25  lie to the residents and say they're putting up
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          2  solar panels. That's what actually happens, okay?

          3  That's what we're trying to combat here.

          4                 You need to speak to both sides

          5  before you come in here and say these kinds of

          6  things.

          7                 And Mr. Fisher, you're the only -- as

          8  far as I know -- paid person up there that's

          9  speaking. First of all, I never said that this

         10  resolution is about health issues.  I specifically

         11  said we don't have the right to regulate health

         12  issues, but we do have the right to regulate other

         13  areas. There are health issues, but that's not what

         14  this is about.

         15                 And in fact, I do have a bill to

         16  penalize private property owners who don't clean up

         17  graffiti.  So we are moving towards that direction

         18  also.  I read your arguments.  And basically you're

         19  saying Federal Law prohibits us from doing anything,

         20  which is kind of like my little daughter saying, na

         21  na, you can't touch me.  We have touched you, and we

         22  will continue to, to work to improve the health of

         23  the people in this City.

         24                 And, again, for anyone in the

         25  audience who is going to come up and say this, maybe
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          2  you missed what I said originally.  We are not

          3  intending to shut down this industry.  We are not

          4  doing anything out of the ordinary.  We're bringing

          5  New York City up to the same standards as the rest

          6  of the country.  I understand better than anyone,

          7  because I've had hearings on unreliable cell phone

          8  service.  I've had hearings.  I was the one who

          9  called for the 9-1-1 surcharge to be given to New

         10  York City since it was being stolen by the State

         11  since 1991, so we can prove 9-1-1 cell phone

         12  service.  I'm completely aware of the safety aspects

         13  of 9-1-1.  I want to work with everyone to make sure

         14  we have reliable service while at the same time,

         15  protect the health of our communities, and make sure

         16  they are not put up across from schools and things

         17  of that nature.

         18                 So if you're going to come up here

         19  and testify, make sure you've talked to both sides

         20  first.  Thank you.

         21                 MR. FISHER: Councilman, I think you

         22  mischaracterized my testimony.  You mischaracterized

         23  my written testimony.  And whether you

         24  mischaracterized you own opening statement, we'll

         25  have to wait until we get the transcript.  But I
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          2  think you made your intention quite clear.  And I

          3  find it insulting to the members of this panel, put

          4  me aside, and particularly this lady here to talk

          5  about her health issues, for you to describe us as

          6  having drunk Kool Aid.  I think that's

          7  inappropriate.

          8                 MS. VAVRUSKA: I'm offended myself.

          9  Very offended.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  I'm going to

         11  ask that if someone speaks to a panel that there is

         12  a question.  So, Councilman Gentile, with that in

         13  mind --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Excuse me.  A

         15  point of personal privilege.  You said I

         16  misrepresented your testimony.  Let me read this

         17  portion then. "I must respectfully point out that

         18  another level of government, the Congress, has

         19  determined that the Council should not enact

         20  legislation which would impede cell phone antennas"

         21  so that's what I was quoting.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Gentile.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you.

         24  Madam Chair.

         25                 I'm curious.  The purpose of this
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          2  resolution is to reinstitute meaningful public

          3  input.  As it says, public review regarding these

          4  cellular antennae, and where they're placed.  So

          5  that there is not that stealth, in the middle of the

          6  night procedure that goes on now.  So what is the

          7  concern?  If you say there is no concern about these

          8  towers, what is your concern about having meaningful

          9  public input through a BSA permit rather than a DOB?

         10

         11                 MR. FISHER: Well Council Member,

         12  first of all, this resolution doesn't provide for

         13  BSA review, it provides for a special permit.  A

         14  full ULURP certification, Community Board, Borough

         15  Presidents, and Planning Commission.  And then the

         16  Council passing on the use.  So that's what's

         17  involved.  And you know as well as I do how time

         18  consuming and expensive, and the fact is, that under

         19  the statute, it's a minimum of seven months because

         20  of the timetable of the ULURP action.  So that's

         21  what the resolution provides.  Secondly, if you have

         22  somebody doing construction work in the middle of

         23  the night, that I think, is in violation of the

         24  Building Code, as it would be, whether they were

         25  putting in a boiler or a stairway, or any other kind
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          2  of work.  Particularly if it's being done on a

          3  rooftop.

          4                 So it's not about the fact that it's

          5  a cell phone tower.  It is about the fact that it's

          6  a cell phone tower, it's not about the fact that

          7  it's construction.  It's not about whether it blends

          8  harmoniously into the background.  That's the

          9  standard. This resolution references certification

         10  and a requirement to be proved in a special permit

         11  proceeding that it meets FCC and PSE requirements.

         12  It's about the health issue.

         13                 Now that's okay.  We can be candid

         14  about that.  And there may be other avenues to

         15  pursue.  But let's be candid about what the bill

         16  says and what its intention is.  That's all I'm

         17  saying.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Let me ask

         19  you this, then, Mr. Fisher.  Is there a procedure by

         20  which -- are you opposed to meaningful public input?

         21    Maybe something short of a full ULURP procedure.

         22  Would you support meaningful public input in review

         23  on the erection of these towers?

         24                 MR. FISHER: I have not heard, from

         25  the testimony and the review that I've made, a
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          2  compelling case for singling out cell phone antennas

          3  as opposed to the giant satellite dishes or air

          4  conditioner chillers, or water tanks, or any of the

          5  other much larger, and potentially more dangerous

          6  installations that are put on rooftops without a

          7  public hearing.

          8                 You'll hear later from the industry

          9  about the efforts that they make to communicate with

         10  the public.  What I'm saying to you is if this is

         11  about construction issues, or if it's about

         12  aesthetics, then I don't know that a compelling case

         13  has been made.  The only thing that distinguishes

         14  these two by four, -- by the way, the size that you

         15  have to be for an individual antenna to meet the

         16  Building Department criteria, is I think it's eight

         17  and a half square feet.  So you're talking about

         18  something that's two by four.  There may be more

         19  than one of them, but it's two by four. The only

         20  thing that distinguishes this two by four pole on

         21  top of a rooftop from an air conditioner chiller or

         22  one of the other permitted obstructions, is the fact

         23  that it's used for cell phone communication.  And on

         24  the basis of that, it seems to me, that for these

         25  small installations, where the Buildings Department
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          2  has determined that they don't have a significant

          3  impact, and where the FCC and the Public Service

          4  Commissioner established the safety standards, and

          5  where all other Building Code requirements have to

          6  be met, that meaningful public review, as the

          7  resolution calls for, because the Council is

          8  alarmed, which the resolution provides, hasn't met

          9  the burden to warrant additional legislation.

         10                 Whether there's some other

         11  legislation that could be considered, I don't know.

         12  I was only asked to comment on this resolution.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  So

         14  you're saying no public review.  But yet, the cell

         15  phone companies are the ones that are posting these

         16  signs.  They're the ones that feel it necessary to

         17  post these signs.

         18                 Now, given that, when these signs are

         19  posted, whether you say these signs are necessary or

         20  not, as the gentleman at the end said, I'm sorry, I

         21  don't remember your name.  You said that this was

         22  overly cautious, I think you called it.

         23  Nevertheless, cell phone companies see fit, and it's

         24  only the cell phone companies see fit, to have to

         25  post these signs.  To me, that requires -- the fact
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          2  that they see fit to post the sign -- requires some

          3  type of public input.

          4                 MR. FISHER: You know what Council

          5  Member, for all I know, since we know from the Fire

          6  Department that roofs have to be left open, and I

          7  don't believe that the leases require them to be

          8  closed, as far as I know, that's the same as if a

          9   "Beware of Dog" sign, and I've seen plenty of them

         10  on houses that don't have dogs. If the roofs are

         11  open, you don't want to have vandalism.  You don't

         12  want people going near the equipment.  But the

         13  standards and the fact that the industry might want

         14  to err on the side of caution, just as the equipment

         15  standards are actually less than what the FCC

         16  requires, it sounds like no good deed goes

         17  unpunished.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And this

         19  notice talks about frequencies.  It doesn't talk

         20  about equipment.  It talks about the frequencies.

         21                 MR. FISHER: That it does Congressman,

         22  but as I said, the sign is overly cautious.  Among

         23  the reasons for putting up signs like that can

         24  include a carrier's belief that they are required,

         25  which they are not.  Or at least not federally.  It
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          2  also can include a carrier's interest in not having

          3  people go up and doing things to the antennas,

          4  because moving the antennas, bending them, and other

          5  types of vandalism, essentially, affects the radio

          6  service.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  Just FYI,

          8  Mr. Fisher we have asked staff to look not only at

          9  what happens in other states, but I have the exact

         10  same question that you did, when we were talking

         11  about this legislation.  We're also looking at what

         12  happens to other things that go on buildings and how

         13  those processes are accomplished.  So we will have

         14  some of those answers ourselves.

         15                 Councilman Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I think that

         17  was one of my questions, and to Mr. Fisher, since he

         18  did bring up air conditioner chillers and the like,

         19  and I know that you are aware of the new ICC code.

         20  Does that come up in the new ICC code, on the

         21  placement of those types of objects on rooftops?

         22                 MR. FISHER: I'm not sure whether the

         23  Building or the Plumbing provisions, which is what I

         24  think Housing and Buildings is doing today has

         25  anything specific on that, but we can check that and
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          2  get back to you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And I

          4  just wanted to ask a question of the gentleman from

          5  the -- with his back to me, not his fault, regarding

          6  the EM emissions and the transmissions. And you said

          7  something about that there's an effective three-

          8  foot area as opposed to the seven foot area on the

          9  signs that are posted.  Could you break that down a

         10  little more detailed as far as, basically, what I

         11  want to know is if you're talking three- foot area,

         12  is it a possibility to make, new equipment, to make

         13  that even a smaller impact zone?

         14                 MR. COLLINS: Three foot isn't that

         15  much.  If the antenna as has been described are

         16  typically on the edge of a roof, facing off the

         17  roof, for a distance of three feet in the air, where

         18  it's not accessible, that's not a hard and fast

         19  number by the way. It depends on the nature of the

         20  service, the frequency of the power.  But in

         21  general, decent experience says, in effect, OSHA

         22  recommends in general, don't stand within three feet

         23  of antennas. You can walk by that area, by the way,

         24  if it is accessible and it's perfectly fine.  But

         25  they suggest don't park there.  And it's just a good
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          2  safety precaution.

          3                 The fact is, that the safety standard

          4  we're dealing with, actually has a built- in safety

          5  margin itself, that is so significant that in order

          6  to actually get to an area around an antenna that

          7  would be considered a threshold potential for health

          8  affect, you have to unscrew the cover of the antenna

          9  and get inside it.  Within one centimeter or there

         10  abouts is where an antenna is actually technically

         11  potentially safety affecting.  And outside of that

         12  distance, it's not.  But the compliance standard

         13  requires things like three- foot safety guidelines.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And what would

         15  be the highest frequency of power antenna that is in

         16  use now in this particular region?

         17                 MR. COLLINS: The frequency use, and

         18  it's interesting here, is the power.  The power

         19  levels used in the cellular industry are no more

         20  than 20 watts per channel.  Which is considered

         21  quite low by the FCC.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that would

         23  be for the large antennas?

         24                 MR. COLLINS: Any size antenna.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The tower --
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          2                 MR. COLLINS: Any size antenna, any

          3  installation. Twenty watts per channel.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Twenty watts

          5  per channel.

          6                 MR. COLLINS: And many carriers use

          7  even less power than that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And for a

          9  tower, how many channels are in a tower?

         10                 MR. COLLINS: In some cases, there

         11  might be a site limit of about 36 channels.  So it

         12  could be a maximum in each of the antenna sectors of

         13  which there are three, of let's say eight to twelve.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Eight to

         15  twelve?  So it's normally like eight to twelve

         16  channels in a particular tower?

         17                 MR. COLLINS: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: As opposed to

         19  36.

         20                 MR. COLLINS: Well, facing in any one

         21  direction. They usually have three different

         22  directions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And

         24  when you say that the transmissions go in and out,

         25  they don't go in a circular area? They just go in a
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          2  one particular direction?  Is that in how many

          3  directionals?

          4                 MR. COLLINS: The signals come out of

          5  an antenna and head straight out in whatever

          6  direction the antenna is pointing. If you have three

          7  antennas that cover one- third of a horizon each,

          8  and then line them up so they cover the whole

          9  horizon, that's how you achieve coverage all around

         10  the site.  That's basically how this is done.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So just for

         12  the novice, so the antennas are pointing up towards

         13  the horizon?  Or --

         14                 MR. COLLINS: Directly out.

         15  Horizontal.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Directly out,

         17  horizontal. And the transmission goes out directly

         18  out in a horizontal.

         19                 MR. COLLINS: Yes.  Now some bits of

         20  energy do go above and below the horizon, but not

         21  much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         23  Alright.  Thank you. Thank you Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Vallone

         25  and Councilman Gentile have another question.  I
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          2  would challenge them that if they want to do closing

          3  statements on opinions and stuff, that they wait

          4  till the end.  And we do it then.  But if it's a

          5  question, that would be great.  For the panel.

          6  Thanks.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You know, I

          8  had a few, but I'm going to limit it just because of

          9  your concerns about getting everyone to testify, I'm

         10  going to limit it.

         11                 Mr. Fisher, are you aware that there

         12  are insurers now, specifically some with Lloyds of

         13  London, who are refusing to insure telephone

         14  manufacturers against long- term damage?  I have a

         15  quote here that says that the damage from claims

         16  will be enormous and dwarf those of smoking and

         17  asbestos.  Are you aware that the insurance

         18  companies are refusing?  I was just wondering if

         19  they're also refusing to insure refrigerator motors.

         20                 MR. FISHER: No, I'm not aware.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  And,

         22  you know what? I've got so many, but again, I want

         23  to hear from everybody else, so I'll refer to

         24  Councilman Gentile.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you.
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          2  I'm curious. Can anyone address the issue of how the

          3  decision is made for the placement and positioning

          4  of these towers?

          5                 MR. COLLINS: I can give slightly more

          6  than a layman's answer.  Each carrier has a certain

          7  amount of coverage in any given vicinity.  They know

          8  what coverage they've got because they go out and

          9  test it with their own equipment that's a little

         10  more sophisticated than the phone.  So they know

         11  where they have gaps.

         12                 Based on the existing network, which

         13  each tower covers, each antenna facility covers a

         14  small area, let's think of it as circular, even if

         15  it may not be.  What they look for is gaps and in

         16  the middle of those gaps, is where they would put

         17  new antenna facilities to try and cover the area, so

         18  that each of the antennas, each of the antenna sites

         19  collectively would basically blanket out an area and

         20  provide coverage so that you don't get dropped calls

         21  as you go from coverage of one site to coverage of

         22  another.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Does the

         24  height of buildings that then have a factor, or

         25  nearness to waterway, or something of that nature?
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          2  Are those factors in determining where those towers

          3  should go?

          4                 MR. COLLINS: Yes.  You want to have

          5  some reasonable either line of sight or reflected

          6  line of sight to the end user you're trying to

          7  cover.  If there are large buildings in the

          8  vicinity, you're not going to be covering the area

          9  behind those buildings, because of the shadowing and

         10  the power attenuation effects.  You don't want to

         11  have antennas that are actually too high, because

         12  they send signals out too far, and cause

         13  interference to adjacent sites, and sometimes sites

         14  in different cities.

         15                 Water is an issue there, because it

         16  tends to propagate the signal a greater distances.

         17  There's a great deal of science behind this.  And

         18  not a whole lot of it is actually new, although it

         19  is evolving on the business of how do you achieve

         20  coverage for cell sites.  We've had cellular radio

         21  in this country since 1979.  This is clearly not

         22  new, but it is evolving.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So nearer to

         24  a waterway, and lower the height of the building is

         25  better.
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          2                 MR. COLLINS: Understand, that nearer

          3  to a waterway means a site in Jersey City that's

          4  facing New York, will cover New York.  Even though

          5  normally, you wouldn't get that kind of distance out

          6  of a site.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Or on a

          8  waterfront within the City of New York.

          9                 MR. COLLINS: A minor waterfront might

         10  not be as big an issue.  Don't forget, there are

         11  people on boats who use the cell phones as well

         12  though.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'd like to thank

         14  the panel for coming in and testifying.  And Ms.

         15  DeRyke, I want you to know that I actually enjoyed

         16  your testimony.  Because I thought it gave a

         17  different perspective as well, on the health aspect

         18  of phones.  And I appreciate your coming in.  And

         19  hopefully, you will come and testify again at some

         20  point.  Thank you very much everyone.

         21                 Next we have, in favor, -- tell me if

         22  I'm wrong, this person did not mark it, but it's a

         23  block association, so I'm assuming they're in favor.

         24  Veronika Conant.  In favor?  Yes. Please.  Ciara

         25  Farrell, of Shareholders Tenants.  I assume they're
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          2  in favor, although it's not marked.  Correct?

          3  Lavinia Galatis.  In favor?  Francis Conant.  Didn't

          4  I just call you?  Francis Conant. Okay.  Let's just

          5  do those four, because --

          6                 Thank you for joining us today.  I

          7  don't really care which order it's in.  If you want

          8  to go from left to right.

          9                 MS. CONANT: My name is Veronika

         10  Conant.  I am a retired Medical Librarian who headed

         11  the Health Professions Library at Hunter College for

         12  many years.  I live in a mixed commercial

         13  residential neighborhood in Midtown Manhattan in a

         14  13-story high co-op building.  And I'm also

         15  President of the West 54th- 55th Street Block

         16  Association.

         17                 In 2002, our co-op building wanted to

         18  generate funds by having an AT&T micro cell base

         19  station installed, and that's when I started to read

         20  the literature.  I got extremely concerned and have

         21  been involved ever since.  The antenna was to be

         22  placed just outside the window of a young couple

         23  with two small children.  And there were several

         24  dentists offices in our building.  There are frail

         25  elderly.  Other children living in the building.
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          2  There were 62.

          3                 We managed to turn around.  We got

          4  the residents involved, and the contract was

          5  reversed and cancelled before they even started.

          6  But they were suing us.  AT&T were suing our

          7  building.  So I really appreciate this hearing, and

          8  I would like to express support for Resolution 1035.

          9    And I'm really glad that you are initiating

         10  oversight again, which hasn't existed since 1998.

         11                 Now, my request is, since our Block

         12  Association is in a mixed residential/commercial

         13  neighborhood, and your resolution only mentions

         14  residential districts, I would like to request to

         15  have the resolution expanded to these mixed

         16  residential/commercial neighborhoods of which there

         17  are so many in Manhattan.  It is truly a commercial

         18  during the day, but during the night, and over

         19  weekends, we are residential.  We are there 24 by

         20  seven.  We work and live there.  And so it's kind of

         21  important for us to be included in this resolution.

         22                 I also appreciate that you want -- or

         23  I hope that you will add a requirement for an

         24  environmental impact statement, giving detailed

         25  specifications about equipment and levels of
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          2  radiation,  and appreciate the comments before,

          3  which I also wrote down about the checking

          4  theoretically the safety of the equipment of the

          5  installation.  And make sure that radiation levels

          6  are below the allowed RF limits, because there are

          7  reported in the literature, many cases of it not

          8  being so.

          9                 I just want to mention that I have

         10  really looked at the medical in the previous health-

         11  related -- there are many health-related affects:

         12  Cancer, immune system disorders, neurological

         13  disorders, chronic fatigue syndrome, learning

         14  disorders, attention deficit disorders, brain

         15  degenerative disorders, memory problems.  And the

         16  vulnerable populations affected include children,

         17  frail elderly, the sick, pregnant women. And there

         18  is such a thing as EMR sensitivity, and the UK

         19  (phonetic) is estimated to be five percent of --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're going to

         21  have to wrap up.

         22                 MS. CONANT: Yes.  I am.  Please

         23  remember, once installed these are there 24 times

         24  seven for many years.  So in a high- density

         25  populated area, it's extremely important to look at
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          2  the how it affects and why it affects the people.

          3  And the DOB study is much needed.  I just wanted to

          4   --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ. No. Thank you.

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 MS. CONANT: And work with you. This

          8  doesn't relate to what we --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Ma'am.

         10                 MS. CONANT: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You have to stop.

         12  I'm sorry.  If you hand in your testimony, that

         13  would be great.

         14                 I think Councilman Vallone.  I know

         15  you were talking to Council when she was testifying

         16  at one point.  She suggested that at nighttime, a

         17  lot of commercial areas are residential, and there

         18  are people still living there.  So here request was

         19  that you extend your bill to commercial as well.

         20  Just in case --

         21                 MS. FARRELL: My name is Ciara

         22  Farrell.  I have a short letter that was written by

         23  our concerned shareholders.  I'm here to represent

         24  the Shareholders and tenants of 3840 Greystone

         25  Avenue in the Riverdale section of the Bronx.
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          2                 During the week of October 27th, a

          3  cell phone base station was installed on the roof of

          4  our building, with antennas on the facade close to

          5  some residents' windows.  This was done with no

          6  notice whatsoever to residents of the building,

          7  except for the three or four co- op members who

          8  approved it.  Residents who inquired about the

          9  installation and activation were given conflicting

         10  and false information.  It seems there are no

         11  definitive answers to our hazard and safety

         12  questions.

         13                 We understand that many scientists

         14  have said there is no proven risk from cell phone

         15  base stations.  We also know that there is concern

         16  among many people who fear the long- range affects

         17  of living close to the radiation they produce since

         18  there are no long- range studies available.

         19                 Signs on the doors to our roof where

         20  the cell phone base station is located, warn people

         21  not to enter and not to get within seven feet of the

         22  antenna, because radiation levels may exceed FCC

         23  standards.  However, antenna have been place on the

         24  facade of the building within three feet of

         25  residents' windows. And are aimed in the direction
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          2  of a playground on a school across the street.

          3            We are fearful for ourselves and our

          4  neighborhood children.  In addition to the worry

          5  about possible health risks, we believe our

          6  apartments are devalued.  Numerous co- op buildings

          7  and institutions in Riverdale have rejected these

          8  deals from cell phone companies for several years

          9  now.

         10                 These are our homes and our

         11  investments.  It is highly unethical and demoral

         12  (phonetic) that the value and possibly the safety of

         13  our homes were traded behind our backs for a little

         14  cell phone completion change.

         15                 We are working to find a solution to

         16  our problems, and we are asking the community and

         17  our elected officials for any support they can give

         18  us.  And we thank you today for holding this

         19  hearing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So your argument is

         21  the value of the homes go down?

         22                 MS. FARRELL: Well, there is no

         23  completed report --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But that's the

         25  concern.
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          2                 MS. FARRELL: And the safety of

          3  course.  And the devaluization of our property.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  I mean

          5  in addition to safety, that the valuation of the

          6  homes is one thing that hasn't been brought up

          7  today, so thank you very much.

          8                 MS. FARRELL: Just one more thing.

          9  Antennas are not on the roof.  Ours are on the side

         10  of the building, like a Fire Department building,

         11  they are not on poles like everybody else's.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Might I remind you

         13  also, everyone in the room, that if there are issues

         14  like that that you think are violations, you can

         15  call your Council Member and I'd be remiss if I

         16  didn't say or 311.  But I would suggest your Council

         17  Member.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. GALATIS: Good afternoon.  My name

         20  is Lavinia Galatis.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Push the button.

         22  If the light is off, the actual microphone is on.

         23                 MS. GALATIS: My name is Lavinia

         24  Galatis.  I represent the Community Educational

         25  Council of District 30, and also as a citizen of the
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          2  City of New York, and the parent of a child in the

          3  New York City school.

          4                 I come before you today as opposed to

          5  the people that were here before, and they were paid

          6  to be here.  I took my own time -- it's vacation

          7  time -- away from my family to come here today, and

          8  to testify.  And I am in support of the Resolution

          9  1035. And also, to let you know that our district,

         10  our Community Educational Council passed a

         11  resolutions that in our district, we will condemn

         12  all installation of antennas within the confines of

         13  any schools.  Because it started with the antennas

         14  in front of PS 122, and they were directly guided in

         15  the school.  They removed them.  They removed the

         16  four antennas that were facing the school, but they

         17  put eight more powerful ones.  And again, this was

         18  done hush- hush, and with all the paying involved.

         19                 But I think that this resolution is

         20  an important step towards our goal to develop

         21  sensible policy and legislation that would provide

         22  more oversight of the industry.  A plan for siting

         23  these antennas in a responsible way with public

         24  involvement in the process.  And I think this is

         25  what we are trying to get here done, and that's why
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          2  we come to support it, and commend Mr. Vallone for

          3  all his hard work, and for you guys that are

          4  listening to us, not hearing us only.

          5                 What I would like to bring up,

          6  because a lot of the issues that I have in my

          7  testimony were touched already, that everybody is

          8  pointing to FCC regulations.  But this FCC

          9  guidelines and regulations and standards are based

         10  on recommendations done in 1996, and the standards

         11  issued in 1991.  And I would like to ask everybody

         12  to think how many wireless devices were around at

         13  that time, and how many are now.  How many antennas

         14  were then, and how many are now?  What is the

         15  threshold of radiation that we are dealing in?  With

         16  eight on top of that we have to deal with and cope

         17  with all these antennas.  So I don't know if this is

         18  really measured.  Everybody is looking strictly in

         19  front of him, at his issue.  Yes, my antenna, my

         20  channel is within the regulations.  But put them all

         21  together.  And one plus one will always equal two.

         22  It will never equal one.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  I would

         24  remind everyone that no only should they be here

         25  testifying, also contact their Congress Member as
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          2  well because if FCC -- we're going to look at it at

          3  our end, but they have the power to change, the

          4  Federal Government.

          5                 MS. GALATIS: Can I have ten seconds

          6  more?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Ten seconds.

          8                 MS. GALATIS: We wrote letters to

          9  everybody.  All the politicians.  Including the

         10  President and his wife.  Our Congressman.

         11  Everybody.  We are in touch with other states that

         12  have similar problems, and we are trying to get

         13  together to support legislation at the Federal

         14  level.  Also, the pressures that were done made the

         15  government to allocate funds that were for further

         16  research.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  Thank you.

         18  Sir.

         19                 It's for the record.  You have to

         20  talk into the mike.

         21                 MR. CONANT: My name is Francis

         22  Conant.  I'm a retired Professor from Hunter

         23  College.  I'm an anthropologist.  And I'm also an

         24  engineer.  And I've been dealing, since World War II

         25  which I was in, with radiation and the transmission
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          2  of all kinds of frequencies and the necessary

          3  maintenance of these instruments.  I have not heard

          4  one word here, either from industry or from Council

          5  Members about the problem of calibration and

          6  recalibration of these transponders.  They are not

          7  simply receivers.  They receive and they transmit.

          8  And they need continual calibration and adjustment.As

          9  was pointed out, in the sort of idyllic scenario,

         10  they're pointed at the horizon.  They go in a

         11  straight line. They're transmissions.  But what

         12  about the subway underneath the building?  Or what

         13  about the big windstorm that moves these

         14  transponders slightly, but significantly?  And I

         15  would urge the Department of Building to have on its

         16  permit a recalibration schedule.

         17                 Finally, what about the person who

         18  might have to the recalibration measures?  This

         19  person will then be exposed, or could be exposed to

         20  eight other transponders on the same roof.  What

         21  kind of a health hazard is that for him?  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate it.

         23  Thank you very much.  I appreciate your coming down.

         24    There are no questions, so we thank you for your

         25  time.
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          2                 We have one, two, three more panels

          3  only.  All in opposition.  Dan Mullin from Verizon.

          4  John Liantonio, Cingular. Janine Kourakas, New York

          5  Wireless.  Mary Vavruska.  She testified, right?  I

          6  called the other woman the wrong name.  Mary spoke

          7  already, right?  Vavruska spoke already?  MarySol

          8  Rodurguez, for Partnership for New York.

          9                 Thank you very much.  Whichever order

         10  you would like is fine with us.  I will ask that you

         11  keep it to two minutes, though.  I keep asking.  One

         12  day, someone will listen to me.

         13                 MR. MULLIN: Thank you.  My name is

         14  Daniel Mullin. I'm Executive Director for State

         15  Public Policy for Verizon Wireless.  I appreciate

         16  the opportunity to be heard on this important topic

         17  today.

         18                 I have with me Leslie Snyder, from

         19  Snyder LLP who is familiar with this zoning and

         20  siting process, and was available for questions on

         21  that topic.

         22                 I want to start off by saying we are

         23  respectfully oppose Resolution 1035.  Verizon

         24  Wireless has made significant investments in New

         25  York City, and well beyond, supplying not only voice
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          2  service, but wireless data service.  One of the new

          3  services coming out of the wireless industry is

          4  wireless data.  Ours is termed "EDDO".  It provides

          5  wireless data service that's 500 to 700 kilobyte

          6  service.  And these services are made available to

          7  public safety, consumers, and businesses alike.  And

          8  it's critical that we continue to provide these

          9  services.  We look forward to not only provide

         10  further information on questions raised, but to work

         11  with members in addressing some of these issues

         12  here.

         13                 However, we feel that Resolution 1035

         14  will significantly hinder our abilities to provide

         15  those improved and quality communications.  Thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ. A minute.  You've

         18  got the record. A minute and 40 seconds.  Thank you.

         19

         20                 MR. LIANTONIO: Hi.  Good afternoon.

         21  John Liantonio, Director of External Affairs, for

         22  Cingular Wireless.  I'm going to be very brief as

         23  well.  We oppose, of course, this resolution,

         24  because it will have a detrimental impact on our

         25  ability to improve cover and capacity, and that is
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          2  the real reason we build these sites, to address the

          3  needs of the consuming public, which is becoming

          4  more and more dependent upon that.  And as an

          5  example of why that's happening more and more, not

          6  just in commercial areas, but now you see them more

          7  in residential areas with services demanded.

          8                 Just to give you a little background,

          9  on October 13th,1983, the first commercial mobile

         10  cellular system began operating in Chicago.  By

         11  1985, the U.S. Boasted 91,600 cellular customers.

         12  Today, only 20 years after the birth of that

         13  service, that wireless service, there are more than

         14  198 million wireless subscribers in the United

         15  States, and nearly 11 million in New York City

         16  alone.  This phenomenal growth is due, in part, to

         17  the fierce competition that exists in the wireless

         18  industry a little more than two decades since the

         19  advent of wireless and mobile services. There are up

         20  to eight carriers per market, four large national

         21  carriers, and a number of regional carriers as well.

         22    And according to the FCC's ten competition report

         23  released this year, 97 percent of the U.S.

         24  Population has a choice of three or more CMRs, and

         25  87 percent of the U.S. Population live in areas
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          2  where five or more wireless providers are available.

          3

          4                 This all is really just to point out

          5  that the growth is explosive, there's a definite

          6  need, there's a demand.  And we do have to come to

          7  some kind of a cooperative understanding of how we

          8  can best serve the public on every level.

          9                 And I would like to end it right

         10  there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         12                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Good afternoon.  I'm

         13  MarySol Rodriguez from the Partnership for New York

         14  City.  You have copies of my written statement, so

         15  I'm just going to try to make the point that we had

         16  hoped to make here today.

         17                 And that is that a strongly- funded

         18  wireless communication system is absolutely

         19  essential to the continued growth of our City

         20  economy.  For many years, New York City wireless

         21  system was better and more universal than that of

         22  other cities, contributing to our competitive

         23  advantage in attracting business to locate and

         24  expand here.  Today, other cities are catching up,

         25  and even surpassing us when it comes to the wireless
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          2  infrastructure.

          3                 The Partnership hopes that the

          4  Council's attention to wireless communication will

          5  alert the public to the need to take this issue very

          6  seriously.  It is important that any legislation be

          7  based on independent research and careful analysis.

          8  And we trust that the Council will act carefully on

          9  this matter, and offer to gather information that

         10  you will feel helpful to informing the legislative

         11  process.

         12                 Our testimony points out other

         13  things, such as a recent ranking of Unites States

         14  cities by Popular Science Magazine included cell

         15  phone uses and wireless as it identified the top ten

         16  technologies embracing cities.  New York City was

         17  not on that list.

         18            We are also concerned of how this

         19  legislation will affect our borough development in

         20  secondary business districts, and other comments

         21  include the increasingly important role in providing

         22  access to broadband services, and increasing

         23  reliance on different forms of cellular technology

         24  including the use of Blackberries.

         25            To conclude, for New York City to maintain
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          2  its competitiveness, our infrastructure must keep

          3  pace with the demands of the 21st century.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

          5                 MS. KOURAKOS: Good afternoon.  My

          6  name is Janine Kourakos,  I'm the Managing Director

          7  of NYWAC, or the New York Wireless Access Coalition.

          8    NYWAC is a coalition of businesses, individuals,

          9  and community organizations advocating for reliable

         10  wireless communications throughout New York City.

         11  Combined, our members represent tens of thousands of

         12  New Yorkers who want reliable wireless

         13  communications.

         14                 Over the last decade, wireless

         15  telecommunication has dramatically changed the way

         16  New Yorkers work and live.  In a City of nearly 9

         17  million people, there are 10 and a half million

         18  wireless phone subscribers, and that number is

         19  growing rapidly, every day.

         20                 NYWAC's greatest concern about

         21  Resolution 1035 is that it will subject every

         22  wireless communications installation in a

         23  residential district to review and approval by

         24  multiple entities. Thus, creating an atmosphere that

         25  causes delay.  Because wireless technology is
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          2  constantly changing and improving the way we live,

          3  work, and provide public safety services, we simply

          4  should not create barriers that prevent the millions

          5  of New Yorkers who depend on wireless technology

          6  every day from enjoying its many benefits.         Let

          7  me give you two brief examples of how wireless

          8  technology saves lives today, and how it will do so

          9  in the near future.

         10                 Right here in New York, more than

         11  11,000 emergency 9- 1- 1 calls are made from

         12  wireless phones every day.  In fact, it is now

         13  estimated that almost half of all 9- 1- 1 phone

         14  calls are made from wireless phones.  And it's

         15  imperative that we be able to keep this service.

         16                 Currently, in Europe, there are

         17  trials getting under way that will revolutionize the

         18  way that medical professionals monitor heart

         19  patients.  Specifically, a doctor attaches a sensor

         20  to a heart patient that monitors their heart beat,

         21  and detects irregularities.  This information can

         22  then be transmitted to doctors via a wireless phone

         23  connection.  In the event of an emergency, a patient

         24  who might not otherwise be able to call for

         25  assistance will benefit from help being dispatched
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          2  automatically.           As we consider the

          3  implications of wireless communications in New York

          4  City, it is imperative that there be access for all,

          5  regardless of where people live, work, or play.

          6                 Now is not the time to impose

          7  restrictive regulations and approval processes that

          8  will delay or severely limit the rollout of wireless

          9  technology and the infrastructure needed to support

         10  it.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So you'll have the

         12  other example in the written testimony?

         13                 MS. KOURAKOS: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         15  much.  Ma'am.

         16                 MS. KOURAKOS: I'll be happy to answer

         17  questions that the Council may have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  Thank you.

         19  Any questions?

         20                 Councilman Vallone.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Just a brief

         22  question.  Ms. Rodriguez, you mentioned that other

         23  cities are catching up to us and even surpassing us

         24  when it comes to wireless infrastructure. I would

         25  take that to mean that they're doing something
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          2  better than we are.  And that's why we need to fix

          3  what's going on here.  Thank you all for coming

          4  down, and I look forward to working with all of you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  There's only

          6  two more panels left.  I'm going to continue in the

          7  order that we've been doing.  There are two in

          8  favor.  Lenore Gordon and Maria Gonzalez.

          9                 Are you Lenore or Maria?  Is Lenore

         10  here?  You're on your own.  Please identify yourself

         11  for the record and then testify.

         12                 MS. GONZALEZ: Hi.  My name is Maria

         13  Gonzalez.  I'm a Registered Nurse for the past 25

         14  years in one of the Manhattan hospitals.  But that's

         15  not really important right now.  What's important

         16  now that I'm here because I'm a concerned parent and

         17  a very concerned citizen because I feel like up to

         18  the moment, that my rights have been taken away.  I

         19  mean, these industries basically do whatever they

         20  want.  They just get this contract with this

         21  landlord, and you have no rights.  I place them

         22  across from the school, they place them across from

         23  where you live.  So that's why I believe that this

         24  resolution is very important, because at least, it's

         25  a step in the right direction.  Because it would
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          2  require at least these companies to get a special

          3  permit for the installation of cellular phone

          4  antennas, and the public would have an input into

          5  the approval.

          6                 Over a year ago, they placed these

          7  cellular phone antennas -- Nextel placed 12 cellular

          8  phone antennas across the street from PS 122 in

          9  Astoria.  And thank God that Councilman Peter

         10  Vallone Jr. Was -- and all the pressure from the

         11  community -- and he was a great big help for Nextel

         12  to remove four of the antennas. Before, the antennas

         13  were basically facing into the school of the

         14  children.  Now, all the people up here, the ones

         15  that are against it, all they ever talk about is

         16  that more service, more service. They're totally

         17  irresponsible.  Yes, we do want a cellular phone,

         18  but they're totally irresponsible.  They don't care

         19  where they place them.

         20                 A year ago, we had this big meeting

         21  with Nextel and we told them our concerns, and that

         22  they shouldn't place them in front of the school

         23  children.  I mean, they never take into

         24  consideration that a child, nobody realizes that a

         25  seven- year old child absorbs twice the radiation of
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          2  an adult.  They don't realize that a child, their

          3  immune system is very immature.  Their nervous

          4  system is immature.  Their skulls are very thin.

          5  They don't take any of this into consideration.

          6                 All they want is to raise that bar.

          7  A year later -- now what they do is that Nextel

          8  places them across the street from the school in

          9  Brooklyn.  So they totally are irresponsible.  They

         10  really do not take into consideration anything about

         11  the children's health.

         12                 This resolution will at least for

         13  them to get a special permit.  At least to stop

         14  them, and not just be able to do anything that they

         15  want.

         16                 They say about -- just one more thing

         17   -- they talk about the FCC.  How they never exceed

         18  their standards.  We had an FCC engineer come to PS

         19  122.  I spoke to him himself, and I asked him about

         20  these RF radiation, how they measure it.  They come

         21  in and they measure.  And I say, well, these

         22  measurement that you take in the school, wherever

         23  you go, is it the same for an adult for a child.  It

         24  was very scary to think and to hear that he said

         25  that it's all the same.
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          2                 I'm sorry.  Until things get changed,

          3  it's the same for a child or for an adult.  And if

          4  you think of it, how scary is that, that the FCC is

          5  in regulations of it, and this is what he's telling

          6  me.  As a nurse, if I give a higher dose to a child,

          7  it's the lethal dose.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Any questions?  No.

          9    I would love it if you have any research or

         10  documents on the absorption rate of children I would

         11  love to have that for the Committee.  Thank you.

         12                 Russ Stromberg, from T- Mobile, in

         13  opposition.  Mark Yackanich, IBB Consulting Group.

         14  Young Su Lee, Korean American Family Senior Center.

         15  All in opposition.

         16                 And there will be one more testimony,

         17  one more testifier after you three, in favor.

         18                 Thank you for joining us.  I don't

         19  care which order you go in.  When the light is off,

         20  the microphone is on.  That's government for you.

         21                 MS LEE: Thank you members of Council

         22  for allowing me to share with you my thoughts this

         23  morning.  My name is Young Su Lee.  And I am the

         24  Outreach for the Korean American Family Service

         25  Center.  Our mission is to assist the victims of
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          2  domestic violence and promote healthy family and

          3  peer relationships in the Korean American community.

          4

          5                 Through our 24- hour, bilingual

          6  hotline, we have callers reaching us at all hours of

          7  the day seeking assistance. The ability for them to

          8  reach us immediately is paramount and the quickest

          9  method is through cell phone.

         10                 Many of our clients have expressed

         11  that cell phones are lifelines for them as they tend

         12  to call from remote locations, without the knowledge

         13  of their abusers.  Often times, these are emergency

         14  situations, where victims who have escaped from

         15  their abuser are in need of immediate assistance or

         16  shelters.

         17                 However, being able to escape but not

         18  being able to reach us because of a weak service

         19  signal may become life threatening for these

         20  individuals.

         21                 So we hope they don't have this kind

         22  of problems, as they will have much heartbreak and

         23  even lives of victims of domestic violence.  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very much
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          2  for joining us.  And if the Sergeant- at- Arms can

          3  continue doing the timing, that would be great.

          4                 Thank you sir.

          5                 MR. YACKANICH: Hi.  My name is Mark

          6  Yackanich, and I'm here today representing IBB

          7  Consulting Group.  And we're opposed to this

          8  resolution.

          9                 IBB is a telecommunications

         10  management consultancy that specializes in helping

         11  major broadband and wireless companies make key

         12  product launch and field decisions.  Our

         13  recommendations to senior management teams in

         14  wireless and broadband industries on go and no- go

         15  decisions for multi- million dollar investments in

         16  new capabilities and new products specifically

         17  hinges on three factors: The return on investment;

         18  speed to market; and very closely linked, consumer

         19  demands.

         20                 This proposed resolution which

         21  strikes directly at the heart of many potential

         22  technologies and products now envisioned by service

         23  providers across the United States.  And in doing

         24  so, impacts consumer's ability to benefit from these

         25  services.
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          2                 This is an exciting time for

          3  fledgling alternative wireless technologies like

          4  mesh Wi- Fi and WiMAX.  These and other emerging

          5  technologies are challenging the traditional

          6  wireless technology and business model dominance.

          7  Technologies are bringing cable companies, land-

          8  line phone, and wireless providers into closer

          9  competition with them.  This is good for the

         10  consumer, and good for the companies themselves.  In

         11  my opinion, these possibilities should be nurtured,

         12  facilitated, and encouraged.

         13                 Regulation, restriction, fees, and

         14  delays acts as on onerous tax on this type of

         15  innovation.  The Federal Government has taken this

         16  message to heart, with decisions to avoid further

         17  taxation on Internet commerce.

         18                 If allowed to flourish, investments

         19  in wireless technology will most likely drive

         20  development of entirely new products.

         21                 Things like higher- speed data

         22  products for fast Internet surfing and rich mobile

         23  applications like video conferencing.

         24                 Truly seamless coverage with

         25  landline- like quality over wireless networks.
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          2                 And more, and cheaper access to

          3  Internet services to help bridge the digital divide.

          4                 In summary, giving the citizens of

          5  NYC far more choice and value for their monthly

          6  communications spend, and valuable new wireless

          7  mobile products.  Wireless spectrum is the

          8  fundamental enabler of wireless service in the U.S.

          9  Siting is akin to spectrum, the lifeblood of

         10  innovation.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         12  much.  Russ.

         13                 MR. STROMBERG: Good afternoon

         14  Chairwoman Katz and Council Members of the Land Use

         15  Committee.  My name is Russ Stromberg, and I am the

         16  New York Metro Engineering and Operations Senior

         17  Manager of Development for T- Mobile USA.

         18                 My testimony today is to compare New

         19  York's permit process to the permitting processes of

         20  other comparable U.S. Cities.  Given the text of

         21  Resolution 1035, and the typical type of site that

         22  T- Mobile and its competitors build in the boroughs,

         23  this analysis specifically applies to mid- rise

         24  roof- top cell sites with special consideration for

         25  sites in residential zones and across the street
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          2  from schools.

          3                 In D.C., these sites are by building

          4  permit only, and can take approximately six weeks.

          5  There is an administrative review prior to Buildings

          6  for an application of less than three weeks, just to

          7  see if it meets design criteria similar to that of

          8  the TPPN, visibility of more than 50 feet, or less

          9  than 50 feet. Are the antennas set back from the

         10  roof edge by ten feet.  The only differentiator here

         11  is that if it meets those criteria, the carrier is

         12  required to do some screening.  There is no public

         13  input in that process.

         14                 In Philadelphia, the process is also

         15  executed in a matter of weeks.  The carrier submits

         16  and administrative zoning application which is

         17  reviewed within ten days to see if (1) the property

         18  is clear of code violations; and (2) that the cell

         19  site meets design policies issued administratively,

         20  similar to a TPPN.

         21                 If either condition is not met, then

         22  the permit does go to a zoning board, comparable in

         23  New York City which exceeds 400 square feet, goes to

         24  the BSA.

         25                 In Chicago, only a building permit is
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          2  required for roof top cell sites.  Permits are

          3  approved in as little as two months, although the

          4  timeline is largely dependent upon the city's

          5  structural engineering review process.  About two

          6  years ago, the city began outsourcing the permit

          7  review for various types of applications, including

          8  cell sites.  This outsourcing process is optional,

          9  and costs the applicants more money, but is a bit

         10  more faster than the city's process.

         11                 In Los Angeles, that we've heard

         12  about today, the permitting process is stricter.

         13  However, things are changing. Based on their

         14  experience with implementation of the code as it

         15  relates to cell sites, the city is proposing to

         16  simplify the permitting process.  In 2001, the city

         17  of Los Angeles passed a wireless ordinance which

         18  requires conditional use permit applications for all

         19  cell sites, even roof top sites.  A zoning officer

         20  heard each permit, and the code typically required

         21  the cell site to be set back from the roof top edge,

         22  or be otherwise screened, so that no more than 25

         23  percent of the cell site was visible from the street

         24  below.  However, Los Angeles is now proposing to

         25  simplify their wireless antenna facility code to
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          2  allow for by- right permitting of many roof top cell

          3  sites.

          4                 In the code amendment proposal by the

          5  City of Los Angeles, they state, "well over 90

          6  percent of all conditional use applications for

          7  antennas are approved, especially for roof top

          8  antennas, since these generate less public

          9  controversy on aesthetic grounds."

         10                 The city con --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're going to

         12  have to wrap.

         13                 MR. STROMBERG: One last sentence.

         14  The city concluded, "There is no point to continuing

         15  to require conditional uses for wireless antenna

         16  installations on roof tops."

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ? Do you have written

         18  testimony on those?

         19                 MR. STROMBERG: Yes, it's been

         20  submitted.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's submitted?

         22                 MR. STROMBERG: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.  Yes, you and

         24  I discussed, I think in my office, about how the

         25  other cities do it.  So clearly, you did our
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          2  research.  And that might be helpful in our

          3  endeavors as well.  So if you can make sure we get

          4  that.

          5                 MR. STROMBERG: And along with the

          6  submitted testimony, we also submitted a bi- council

          7  map of the number of T Mobile carried 9- 1- 1 calls

          8  in the last 45 days, exceeding 200,000 calls in the

          9  last 45 days.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Alright.  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you Mr.

         13  Stromberg, for pointing out that every city that you

         14  mention here has stricter requirements than we have

         15  in New York City.  And I'd like to work with

         16  representatives of the companies to come up with one

         17  that you think works, and gives the public some

         18  meaningful review so we can get it done here in New

         19  York City too.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Great.

         21                 There's one more testifier.  From the

         22  Astoria Neighborhood Coalition.  If you can state

         23  your name for the record, that would be great.

         24                 MS. MARY: I'm Mary, from Astoria

         25  Neighborhood Coalition.  Dr. Blank, he's a
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          2  physicist, he was at the State Assembly meeting.  He

          3  said that RF microwaves alter the proteins in a

          4  human cells.  Okay?  And this is a doctor.  This

          5  isn't a person that doesn't know what they're

          6  talking about.  Okay?  Doctor Uliss (phonetic),

          7  Forest Hills, he's an eye retinologist surgeon, and

          8  he also told me the RF microwave cause eye damage.

          9  He didn't go into it in details, because he was busy

         10  with patients.  But these are doctors, now.  We're

         11  not talking about people that do not know what

         12  they're talking about.  Okay?

         13                 And the public cannot use health

         14  issues relating to RF microwave exposure according

         15  to the Health Exclusion Defense, written by Law,

         16  enabling cellular companies to acquire insurance for

         17  cellular towers and cellular phones.  Okay.

         18                 How dare the cellular phone industry

         19  do this to you, the public, and our babies?  We all

         20  are at risk with no insurance coverage.  The public

         21  is not protected.  Our human rights have been

         22  completely taken away.  We cannot even sue the

         23  cellular industry for health damages in a court of

         24  law because of health exclusions in the law.  And I

         25  did give out flyers all about this, okay?  And also

                                                            157

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  a web site so you could see what's going on.  Okay?

          3                 Fire escapes are blocked by roof top

          4  enclosed radio active cables.  Heart patients with

          5  pacemakers, defibrillators, pregnant women, are

          6  being exposed, and they can't escape from these

          7  buildings if there's a fire.  And by the way, if the

          8  batteries that placed in the basement, if there's a

          9  fire, you know how toxic the fumes are from those?

         10                 Why are we not able to have input?

         11  Where are our rights here?  Okay.  And I want to

         12  know why the City Charter was violated by not

         13  allowing the public, the City Council's due process

         14  to make any decision whatsoever regarding placement

         15  of cellular towers.  And why was one person in the

         16  Building Department able to sign off, saving the

         17  cellular industry $75,000 in filing fees on each

         18  tower installed.

         19                 And the next thing I want to say --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're going to

         21  have to wrap it up.

         22                 MS. MARY: Alright.  Under the Freedom

         23  of Information Act, the public wants all papers

         24  without cost or exclusion, that were filed in order

         25  to get roof top cellular licensing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Having no more testifiers, this

          5  resolution has work to -- has a lot of work to do

          6  before we go forward on it.  We will work with the

          7  sponsor of the bill, the community, and the cell

          8  phone companies to try and accommodate all the

          9  issues that were brought up today.

         10                 Meeting adjourned.

         11                 (The following written testimony was

         12  submitted by Neil Weiss for the record.)

         13

         14

         15  Written Testimony Of:

         16  Neil Weiss

         17  Editor and Publisher

         18  Black Car News

         19                 Good morning Chairwoman Katz and

         20  members of the Committee.  My name is Neil Weiss,

         21  and I'm editor and publisher of Black Car News, a

         22  publication for the car service industry.  Thank you

         23  for holding this hearing and letting me submit

         24  information relevant to Resolution 1035.

         25                 As someone who has been reporting on
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          2  and serving the limousine and Black Car industry for

          3  more than 15 years, I can say without question that

          4  tens of thousands of drivers and operators in New

          5  York City alone rely on their wireless phones each

          6  day.  Their wireless phones and other wireless

          7  devices connect them to their dispatchers and their

          8  clients.  Any gaps in that service can be more than

          9  just a nuisance.  If they don't have an open line of

         10  communication at all times, they cannot properly

         11  perform their jobs.

         12                 When drivers cannot communicate with

         13  their dispatchers due to a low or nonexistent signal

         14  on their wireless phones, they can miss a last-

         15  minute change and therefore, blow a pickup.  This

         16  only means a loss of revenue to them personally and

         17  t the transportation company they serve, it directly

         18  affects their clients, which are comprised of

         19  executives from every major corporation in the City

         20  and the countless tourists who visit New York each

         21  year.

         22                 Oftentimes, a limousine or Black Car

         23  base will contact its drivers to warn them of

         24  traffic jams.  These warnings initially come from

         25  other drivers who are already stuck in a major pile-
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          2  up, who are afraid they will miss their pickup and

          3  want to make sure other drivers are dispatched so

          4  that the client is picked up on time.

          5                 A "dead spot" due to a low signal can

          6  mean that some drivers are not warned in time to

          7  avoid the pile- up, which can slow down multiple

          8  picks- ups in the same area.  It can also mean that

          9  a dispatcher may not be able to communicate with the

         10  drivers closest to a particular pickup location,

         11  which further delays service to the people

         12  requesting it.

         13                 When corporate executives miss a

         14  flight or end up being late to a business meeting

         15  because their driver didn't receive an important

         16  phone call, the financial impact on the corporation

         17  they represent (and the city itself) can be quite

         18  tangible and significant.

         19                 Likewise, if a tourist doesn't make

         20  his or her flight because of severe traffic that

         21  their driver could otherwise have avoided, it leaves

         22  a bad taste in their mouth and can impact whether

         23  they return to the city again, bringing their

         24  tourism dollars with them.

         25                 Because of this, any program that
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          2  would further improve the service that wireless

          3  phone users receive is one that will benefit the

          4  growth and industry of New York City.

          5

          6                 The following written testimony was

          7  submitted by Lisa Volpe McCabe for the record.

          8                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          9  present Sprint Nextel Corporation's (Sprint)

         10  comments regarding Resolution No. 1035.  My name is

         11  Lisa Volpe McCabe and I am the Director of the

         12  Northeast Region for Sprint State Legislative

         13  Affairs.

         14                 Resolution No. 1035 would amend

         15  current New York City zoning rules by requiring a

         16  special permit to be granted by the City Planning

         17  Commission for the installation of telephone

         18  exchanges or communications equipment in residential

         19  districts.

         20                 Reliable Service is Critical to New

         21  York City Mobile Users.

         22                 As you know, dependence on wireless

         23  communication services has grown tremendously in

         24  recent years.  High quality, reliable service is

         25  critical to both individual and business
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          2  subscribers, as well as emergency response personnel

          3  and public safety agencies, all of whom rely o

          4  wireless communication twenty four hours a day,

          5  seven days a week.  An estimated 200 million calls

          6  are made to 911 in the U.S. each year.  According to

          7  the Federal Communications Commission, one- third

          8  are wireless calls; in many communities, it is one-

          9  half or more of all 911 calls.

         10                 Today's wireless users expect

         11  anytime, anywhere service.  As the number of

         12  wireless subscribers increases, so does the need for

         13  necessary facilities to be built and/or installed to

         14  cover this increased capacity.  The key to providing

         15  the necessary quality and reliability in wireless

         16  services is having a sufficient number of well-

         17  placed transmitting and receiving facilities.

         18  Therefore, the provisions governing facility

         19  placement are critical to wireless carriers' ability

         20  to provide crucial and satisfactory service.

         21                 Resolution No. 1035 Will Cause Delay

         22  in Cell Site Build- Out.

         23                 Additional zoning authority as

         24  proposed in Resolution No. 1035 will only create

         25  additional delays in lengthy cell site build- out
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          2  and add unnecessary costs.  In addition, a patchwork

          3  of legislation in different jurisdictions regulating

          4  tower siting will only diffuse and retard further

          5  wireless network build- out.  Local zoning and

          6  onerous tower siting legislation remains the single

          7  biggest obstacle in the construction of cell sites

          8  that can cause delays lasting months and sometimes

          9  years.

         10                 The Proposed Change in the New York

         11  City Zoning Ordinance Would Discriminate Against the

         12  Wireless Carriers Working to Improve Their Networks.

         13                      The proposed change in the New

         14  York City zoning ordinance would discriminate

         15  against the wireless carriers working to improve

         16  their networks in New York City and the five

         17  boroughs. Under the proposed resolution, gas and

         18  electric substations, water and sewerage pumping

         19  stations would continue to enjoy their exemptions

         20  from any type of public process thereby unfairly

         21  subjecting wireless carriers to additional and

         22  unwarranted scrutiny not posed on any other critical

         23  infrastructure.

         24                 Resolution 1035 Would Hamper

         25  Innovation for Consumers.
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          2                 This resolution would not only

          3  prohibit future growth of wireless services in an

          4  environment of still dramatic growth in subscribers

          5  but it may likely cause a significant degradation in

          6  the quality of service for existing users who

          7  continue to dramatically increase the number of

          8  wireless telecommunications minutes used per month.

          9  Further, this measure would prevent the

         10  implementation of new innovative wireless services

         11  that consumers desire and demand yet require ever

         12  increasing network capacity.  Ultimately, this

         13  proposed zoning change would impact economic

         14  activity in a city that revolves around a mobile

         15  work force, from the service technician, to the

         16  package messenger, to the police officer, to the

         17  corporate executive.

         18                 Attached to this letter for your

         19  consideration, is information regarding how a mobile

         20  telephone system operates and safety guidelines used

         21  in antenna siting.  This information was presented

         22  in April of 2004 before the New York City Council

         23  Joint Committees on Health and Housing and Buildings

         24  in April of 2004 by various experts disputing claims

         25  of potential health risks associated with wireless
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          2  base stations on rooftops.

          3                 Wireless Carriers Remain Sensitive to

          4  Antenna Placement.

          5                 Cell sites are predominately

          6  developed to carry voice transmissions, but as

          7  technologies advance and consumer demand for service

          8  continues to increase, cell sites are being

          9  redesigned and expanded to add data transmissions.

         10  As a wireless carrier committed to expanding

         11  existing networks while building out new cell sites,

         12  Sprint continues to seek out collocation

         13  opportunities.  The use of existing buildings and

         14  structures to support our facilities minimizes the

         15  visual impact involved in the provision of our

         16  services.  Collocation contributes to fewer stand

         17  alone towers and lower monthly bills for the

         18  consumer as wireless carriers share the associated

         19  construction costs.

         20                 In conclusion, a change to the

         21  current telecommunications cellular siting protocol

         22  would in essence, stop the wireless build plan un

         23  New York City and the outer boroughs. Creating a

         24  public process to debate the viability of one

         25  location over another would only cause unnecessary
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          2  delays.  The vast areas of residentially zoned

          3  districts would create incredible difficulties in

          4  terms of providing continued coverage for our

          5  customers and your constituents in New York City.

          6            Thank you for the opportunity to provide

          7  these comments on behalf of Sprint Nextel

          8  Corporation.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 1:10 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 15th day of November 2005.
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         25                          LENORE NAGLE
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          9            I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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